
City Council
www. phoenixoregon.gov

541-535-1955

City Council Meeting
Agenda

September 18, 2023
6:30 p.m. Public Meeting

Hybrid Meeting in Person and Via Zoom
Phoenix Plaza Civic Center 220 N. Main St.Nia Zoom

A complete agenda packet is available on the city’s website. This meeting is being conducted in person and
virtually to allow for public participation. A recording of the meeting in its entirety will be posted to
www.phoenixoreqon.qov. To comment on agenda items, please write your name on the sign-in sheet and
include the item number, if attending via Zoom raise your hand when the topic is discussed by Council. If
you need special accommodations, please give the City Recorder 72-hours prior notice.

Webinar ID: 889 0949 3215
Passcode: 611720
International numbers available: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kdTrPFmBCu

City of Phoenix
Heart of the Rogue Valley

Please click the link below to join the webinar:
https://us06web.zoom . us/i1889094932 I 5?wd=am I wVUJ u MWlnWXMvc3hhSHd4bC9uZzO9
Passcode: 611720

Or One tap mobile: +1 719 359 4580, 88909493215#, *61 1720# US +1 253 205 0468,
88909493215#, *611720# US

Or Telephone: Dial (for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location):

(Tacoma)
(Houston)

(San Jose)

(New York)
(Washington DC)

(Chicago)

+1 507 473 4847 US

+1 719 3594580 US
+1 253 205 0468 US
+1 253 215 8782 US
+1 346 248 7799 US
+1 6694449171 US
+1 669 900 6833 US
+1 564 2172000 US
+1 646 931 3860 US
+1 689 278 1000 US
+1 929 205 6099 US
+1 301 715 8592 US
÷1 305 224 1968 US
+1 309 205 3325 US
+1 312 626 6799 US
+1 360 209 5623 US
+1 386 347 5053 US

City of Phoenix, Council Meeting Agenda
1



1. Call to Order I Roll Call I Confirmation of a Quorum
Except as provided in Section 33 of the City Charter, a minimum of four Council Members are needed for
a quorum and to conduct city business. If the Mayor is needed to establish a quorum, then he/she may
become a voting member for that meeting (Phoenix Municipal Code, Chap. 2.28.020.A.4).

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Presentations
a. Colleen Padilla, Executive Director - Southern Oregon Regional Economic

Development, Inc. (SOREDI) Update
b. New City of Phoenix Website

4. Public Comments
This item is for persons wanting to present information or raise an issue, not on the agenda. Each person
shall be limited to three minutes and may not allocate their time to others unless authorized by the
Presiding Officer. To comment, please write your name on the sign-in sheet. When your name is called,
step foiward to the podium and state your name and address for the record. If attending virtually, please
raise your hand and wait to be allowed to speak. When your name is called, please unmute yourself and
state your name and address for the record. (In accordance with state law, a recording of the meeting
will be available at city hall, but only your name will be included in the meeting minutes). While the
Council or staff may briefly respond to your statement or question, the law does not permit action on,
or extended discussion of, any item not on the agenda except under special circumstances.

5. Consent Agenda
Items on the Consent Agenda are considered routine and will be adopted by one motion. There will be
no separate discussion of these items unless it is requested by a member of the Council or staff
If so requested, that item will be pulled from the Consent Agenda and considered separately immediately
following approval of the remaining items.

a. Reports for Information & Possible Action:
1. Phoenix Police Department Surplus Vehicle 5
2. Resolution No. 1114 — Adopting Medford Water Commission Resolution 1902

Modifying the SDC Rate 6
3. Intergovernmental Agreement Between Jackson County, the City of Talent, and

the City of Phoenix for Fuel Reduction Work on the Bear Creek Greenway 12

b. Minutes to Approve and File:
1. Minutes from City Council Meeting August 21, 2023 30
2. Minutes from the City Council Executive Session August 21, 2023 34

6. Consent Agenda Items Pulled for Discussion

7. New Business
a. Appointment of the 2023 City Council Vice-President 35
b. Appointment of Councilors as Commiffee and Commission Liaisons 36
c. Interviews of Candidates for the Open City Councilor Seats 37

city of Phoenix, Council Meeting Agenda
2



8. Ordinance: Reading/Adoption
a. Ordinance No 1033 — An Ordinance Annexing 353 Acres Within the City’s Urban Growth

Boundary Pursuant to ORS 222.170, Removing the Area from Jackson County Fire
District No. 2 Pursuant to ORS 222.524 and Annexing the Area to Jackson County Fire
District No. 5 to ORS 198.867(3) 46

9. Staff Reports
a. City Attorney
b. City Manager 74
c. CEDEV Director

10. Mayor and Council Comments I Reports
Any Councilor may make an announcement or raise any item of business that is not on the agenda.
While other Councilors or city staff may briefly respond or comment, the law does not permit action on,
or extended discussion of, any item not on the agenda except under special circumstances. If extended
deliberation or potential action on a matter is desired, Council may direct staff to place the item on a
future meeting agenda.

11. Adjournment

City of Phoenix, Council Meeting Agenda
3



City of Phoenix Future agenda summary 09118/23
Heart of the Rogue Valley

To be scheduled: City Council

To be scheduled: PHURA
• Annual Report

Upcoming City of Phoenix Meetings:

September 21, 2023 Parks and Recreation Committee Meeting
6:00 pm at 220 N. Main St.

October 02, 2023 City Council Meeting
6:30 pm at 220 N. Main St.

October 09, 2023 Planning Commission Meeting
6:30 pm at 220 N. Main St.

October 16, 2023 City Council Meeting
6:30 pm at 220 N. Main St.

October 19, 2023 Parks and Recreation Committee
6:00 pm at 220 N. Main St.

November 06, 2023 City Council Meeting
6:30 pm at 220 N. Main St.

November 13, 2023 Planning Commission Meeting
6:30 pm at 220 N. Main St.

November 20, 2023 City Council Meeting
6:30 pm at 220 N. Main St.

December 02, 2023 Christmas Tree Lighting
220 N. Main St.

December 04, 2023 City Council Meeting
6:30 pm at 220 N. Main St.

December 11, 2023 Planning Commission Meeting
6:30 pm at 220 N. Main St.

All of the above meetings are tentative and are subject to change.

City Council Agenda Report
4



Agenda Item #: 5a1.

_

-J
City of Phoenix
Heart of the Rogue Valley

Agenda item title: Phoenix Police Department Surplus Vehicle

PREPARED BY: Chief Derek Bowker REVIEWED BY:

___________________

SUMMARY
Declare Phoenix Police Department Vehicle #4603, a 2014 Dodge Charger, VIN
#2C3CDXAG4EH45O471, surplus.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION
The Phoenix Police Department currently has a 2014 Dodge Charger that was purchased
new in October 2015. This vehicle has approximately 90,000 miles on the odometer and
has served the City of Phoenix well. However, the maintenance upkeep on the vehicle
outweighs its benefit. It currently has bad lifters, body damage, needs new tires and other
issues that would cost the city around $10,000 to rectify on a vehicle that is worth well
under $5000. All of the emergency equipment that we can re-purposed has been removed
and placed in storage for future use.

FISCAL IMPACT
None to minimally positive. When these vehicles go to auction, they tend to sell for less
than $1000.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends the City Council declare Vehicle #4603, a 2014 Dodge Charger surplus.

PROPOSED MOTION
I move the City declare Phoenix Police Department Vehicle #4603, a 2014 Dodge
Charger, surplus and allow the Phoenix Police Department to dispose of the vehicle in a
lawful manner.

ATTACHMENTS
None

Agenda Report
to Mayor and Council

Meeting Date: September 18, 2023

From: Derek Bowker, Chief of Police

Action: XMotion, Information only, Other

City Council Agenda Report 5



Agenda Report
City of Phoenix to Mayor and Council
Heart of the Rogue Valley

Agenda item title: Resolution No. 1114 Adopting Medford Water Commission Resolution
1902 modifying the SDC rate.

Meeting Date: September 18, 2023

From: Zac Moody, Planning Manager

Action: Motion, Ordinance, XResolution, only, Other

SUMMARY
Each year the Medford Water Commission (MWC) evaluates their water system
development charge rate. On September 6, 2023, the Medford Water Commission held a
public hearing on the proposed modification to the SDCs for water treatment and
transmission facilities. At that hearing, Resolution 1902 was passed, increasing the MWC
SDC for each meter size. These fees provided in the MWC resolution and are effective
October 1, 2023.

FISCAL IMPACT
This is a pass-through fee to Medford Water Commission and there is no financial impact
to the city.

RECOMMENDATION
Approve the resolution as drafted or modify the resolution if desired.

PROPOSED MOTION
“I move to approve Resolution number 1114 as presented (as modified), adopting Medford
Water Commission Resolution 1902 modifying the system development change fee
collected on behalf of the Medford Water Commission.”

ATTACHMENTS
Draft Resolution No. 1114
MWC Resolution No. 1902

-w1c

Agenda Item #: 5a2.

City Council Agenda Report 6



CITY OF PHOENIX
RESOLUTION NO. 1114

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING MEDFORD WATER COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 1902
MODIFYING THE SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGE FEE COLLECTED ON BEHALF OF
THE MEDFORD WATER COMMISSION FOR WATER TREATMENT AND TRANSMISSION

FACILITI ES

WHEREAS, the City of Phoenix has an agreement with the Medford Water Commission
for the treatment and transportation of municipal water; and

WHEREAS, as a part of that agreement, the City of Phoenix collects Medford Water
Commission SDC fees on behalf of the Medford Water Commission; and

WHEREAS, the Medford Water Commission has raised SDC fees for Water Treatment
and Transmission Facilities per Equivalent Residential Unit, effective October 1, 2023, by
Resolution 1902 (Exhibit A); and

WHEREAS, it is the intent of this Resolution to inform the community of the fee increase
and to appropriately apply the SDC fee on behalf of the Medford Water Commission
within the City of Phoenix.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Phoenix City Council that:

SECTION 1. The City of Phoenix hereby adopts Medford Water Commission Resolution
No. 1902, a copy of which is attached hereto and made a part hereof.

SECTION 2. The City of Phoenix hereby establishes Medford Water Commission SDC
fee increase for the City of Phoenix, effective October 1, 2023, according to said Medford
Water Commission Resolution No. 1902.

SECTION 3. The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to, on behalf of the City
of Phoenix, execute any necessary agreements associated with Resolution No. 1902 and
the Medford Water Commission.

SECTION 4. The effective date for implementation of these fees is October 1, 2023.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Counsel of the City of Phoenix, Oregon on the 1 8th

day of September 2023, and signed in authentication thereof.

Terry Baker, Mayor

ATTEST:

Bonnie Pickett, Recorder

7



RESOLUTION NO. 1902

A RESOLUTION of the City of Medford, Oregon, By and Through its Board of Water
Commissioners, Modifying System Development Charges (SDCs) for Water Treatment and
Transmission Facilities, to $2,225.62 per Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU), Using the Methodology
and Other Provisions Relating to Imposition and Collection of SDCs, Effective October 1, 2023

WHEREAS, on July 1, 1994, Medford Water adopted Resolution Nos. 773 & 774,
establishing and imposing SDCs for water treatment and transmission facilities; and

WHEREAS, Medford Water reviews SDC rates annually and revises capital project costs to
reflect changes in the Engineering News — Record Construction Cost Index (Ccl), modifications to
the master facility plans, and modifications to the list of eligible projects as approved by the Board of
Water Commissioners; and

WHEREAS, the SDC for Water Treatment and Transmission Facilities was last modified in
September 2022; and

WHEREAS, the 2023 SDC review identified capital improvements which effectively modify
the capacity of treatment plant and transmission facilities; and

WHEREAS, Staff presented a study session on the staff review on April 19, 2023; and

WHEREAS, at their September 6, 2023, meeting, the Board of Water Commissioners
reviewed the calculations, and Staffs recommendation to modify the SDC for Water Treatment and
Transmission Facilities from the current amounts based on the following meter sizes and weighting
factors:

Meter Size Weighting Factor SDC Charge
%“ x / 1 $2,225.62

1” 1.6 $3,560.99
I %“ 4.3 . $9,570.16

2” 5.7 $12,686.03
3” 18.6 $41,396.51

* Meters four inches (4”) and larger may be sized for combined fire and consumption demands Applicants whose projects will require these
large meters are required to pay the SDC based on the actual meter size installed. The applicant may, one year after completion of the project,
ask for a review of their consumption patterns. If the maximum consumption demand is less that which is available for the meter size installed,
a reduction in the fee to the approximate meter size will be allowed. If the consumption patterns change for those customers who have
qualified for a reduction in SDC fees, the Commission, City or Water District may require the payment of additional SDC fees

WHEREAS, a public hearing to consider modification of the SDC for Water Treatment and
Transmission Facilities was held on September 6, 2023, and noticed according to Oregon statutory
requirements;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF WATER COMMISSIONERS
OF THE CITY OF MEDFORD, OREGON, AS FOLLOWS, THAT:

Effective October 1, 2023, the SDC to be collected for water treatment and transmission
facilities, in the modified amount of $2,225.62 per ERU, as set forth in the annual staff review,
attached as Exhibit A and by reference made a part hereof, with 100 percent (100%) being a
reimbursement and improvement fee, with payment due and payable at the time the improvement
plans are approved for the proposed development.

PASSED by the Board of Water Commissioners and signed by me in authentication of its
passage this 6th day of September 2023. . -

ATTEST:

________________________

-

Amber Furu, Asst. Clerk of the Commission Micael .mith Chair

RESOLUTION NO. 1902 090623

8



E
X

H
IB

IT
A

T
O

R
E

SO
L

U
T

IO
N

19
02

-
PA

G
E

1
O

F
3

M
ed

fo
rd

W
at

er
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
S

ys
te

m
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

C
h

ar
g

e
S

tu
d

y
S

ys
te

m
W

id
e

SD
C

C
al

cu
la

ti
on

E
xh

ib
it

1

S
D

C
s

F
or

:
T

R
E

A
T

M
E

N
T

PL
A

N
T

A
N

D
T

R
A

N
SM

IS
SI

O
N

E
X

PA
N

SI
O

N
-

30
14

51
65

M
G

D
(4

,5
)

(7
)

(8
)

(1
1)

13
)

(1
0)

(2
)

(1
)

C
iP

IA
ss

et
C

ap
ac

it
y-

In
cr

ea
si

ng
P

ro
je

ct
D

es
cr

ip
ti

on
ita

l
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t
P1

.I
ns

ta
lla

tio
n

Y
ea

r
Y

ea
rs

In
S

eM
ce

or
Y

ea
r

A
nn

ua
lA

ve
ra

ge
CC

I
fo

r
E

s
ss

at
Po

rt
io

n
E

lig
ib

le
(%

)
W

IF
1A

Pr
oj

ec
t?

E
st

im
at

ed
SO

C
P

re
se

nt
E

st
im

at
ed

C
os

t
ER

U
S

P
re

se
nt

W
or

th
(P

W
)

(C
on

st
ru

ct
ed

R
ei

m
bu

rs
em

en
t

or
F

ut
ur

e
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t)
of

E
st

im
at

e
in

st
al

la
tio

n
Y

ea
r

C
os

t(
S)

C
os

t
(5)

(2
02

2$
)

C
os

t
pe

r
ER

U
(5)

I.
W

A
T

E
R

T
R

E
A

T
M

E
N

T
PL

A
N

T
E

X
PA

N
SI

O
N

(I
n

cr
ea

se
of

15
M

G
D

T
O

65
M

G
D

m
50

M
G

D
)

C
A

D
U

26
06

0
D

U
FF

-H
IG

H
SV

C
PU

M
P

19
81

42
35

35
54

,9
57

10
0%

54
,9

57
$

20
2,

21
6

53
,7

33
3.

76

C
A

D
U

26
86

0
R

O
G

U
E

R
IV

E
R

IN
T

A
K

E
19

82
41

38
25

18
4,

26
9

10
0%

18
4,

26
9

$
62

6,
59

0
53

,7
33

11
.6

6

C
A

D
U

27
16

O
D

U
FF

PL
A

N
T

FI
L

T
E

R
S

19
83

40
40

66
57

2,
17

9
10

0%
57

2,
17

9
$

1,
83

0,
21

0
53

,7
33

34
.0

6

C
A

D
U

26
30

0
D

U
FF

PL
A

N
T

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

19
83

40
40

66
30

0,
85

2
10

0%
30

0,
85

2
$

96
2,

32
5

53
,7

33
17

.9
1

C
A

D
U

26
32

0
D

U
FF

PL
A

N
T

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

19
83

40
40

66
36

,4
68

10
0%

36
,4

68
$

11
6,

65
0

53
,7

33
2.

17

C
A

D
U

O
47

8O
C

O
A

G
U

L
A

T
IO

N
B

A
SI

N
S

D
U

FF
19

89
34

46
15

45
4,

16
9

10
0%

45
4,

16
9

$
1,

28
0,

11
5

53
,7

33
23

.8
2

C
A

D
U

38
82

0
D

U
F

F
H

IG
H

S
V

C
P

U
M

P
#5

19
97

26
58

26
18

4,
17

1
10

0%
18

4,
17

1
$

41
1,

17
1

53
,7

33
7.

65

C
A

D
U

38
80

0
R

O
G

U
E

IN
T

A
K

E
PU

M
P

#1
19

97
26

58
26

23
7,

38
9

10
0%

23
7,

38
9

$
52

9,
98

3
53

,7
33

9.
86

C
A

D
U

42
89

0
D

U
FF

PH
A

SE
It

PU
R

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

-
O

R
IG

IN
A

L
C

O
S

T
IN

C
L

U
D

E
S

U
PI

20
00

23
62

21
2,

07
9,

18
6

3%
51

,9
90

$
10

8,
69

8
53

,7
33

2
0

2

C
A

D
U

43
93

0
D

U
FF

PL
A

N
T

PH
A

SE
III

FI
L

T
E

R
E

X
PA

N
SI

O
N

20
00

23
62

21
1,

12
0,

26
9

10
0%

1,
12

0,
26

9
$

2,
34

2,
19

1
53

,7
33

43
.5

9

C
A

D
U

43
94

0
D

U
FF

PL
A

N
T

PH
A

SE
III

FI
L

T
E

R
E

X
PA

N
SI

O
N

20
00

23
62

21
1,

03
4,

09
4

10
0%

1,
03

4,
09

4
$

2,
16

2,
02

3
53

,7
33

40
.2

4

C
A

D
U

46
37

0
D

U
F

F
E

F
F

L
U

E
N

T
P

IP
IN

G
&

M
E

T
E

R
IN

G
20

03
20

66
95

12
1.

56
4

10
0%

12
1.

56
4

$
23

6,
18

6
53

,7
33

4.
40

C
A

D
U

46
76

0
D

U
FF

E
L

E
C

T
R

IC
A

L
U

PG
R

A
D

E
50

%
20

04
19

71
15

82
9,

21
4

50
%

41
4,

60
7

$
75

7,
92

9
53

,7
33

14
.1

1

C
A

D
U

48
33

1
D

U
FF

W
A

SH
W

A
T

E
R

L
A

G
O

O
N

(5
0%

SD
C

FU
N

D
E

D
)

20
09

14
85

75
4,

27
9,

37
1

50
%

2,
13

9,
68

5
$

3,
24

5,
60

5
53

,7
33

60
.4

0

C
A

D
U

48
82

1
D

U
FF

IN
TA

K
E

FI
SH

S
C

R
E

E
N

S
(5

0%
SD

C
FU

N
D

E
D

20
10

13
88

02
1,

90
3,

04
9

50
%

95
1,

52
4

$
1,

40
6,

01
8

53
.7

33
26

.1
7

C
A

D
U

49
O

8O
D

U
FF

H
IG

H
SE

R
V

IC
E

PU
M

P
20

10
13

88
02

24
6,

06
7

10
0%

24
6,

06
7

$
36

3,
60

1
53

,7
33

6.
77

C
A

D
U

50
58

8
D

uf
f

65
M

G
D

(N
om

in
al

)
R

aw
W

at
er

P
um

p
#1

D
es

ig
n/

C
on

st
ru

ct
20

16
7

10
33

8
81

7,
24

3
25

%
20

4,
31

1
$

25
7,

04
9

53
,7

33
4.

78

-‘
C

A
D

U
5O

6O
5

D
uf

f
65

M
G

D
F

lo
c-

S
ed

lR
ap

id
M

ix
er

D
es

ig
n

-
50

%
ex

pa
ns

io
n

p
14

-0
00

09
20

17
6

10
73

7
92

1,
85

2
50

%
46

0,
92

6
$

55
8,

38
9

53
,7

33
10

.3
9

C
A

D
U

5O
6O

5
D

uf
f

65
M

G
D

F
lo

c-
S

ed
/R

ap
id

M
ix

er
C

on
st

ru
ct

-
50

%
ex

pa
ns

io
r

14
-0

00
09

20
17

6
10

73
7

10
,9

39
,3

09
50

%
5,

46
9.

65
5

$
6,

62
6.

21
8

53
,7

33
12

3.
32

C
A

D
U

5O
6O

5
D

uf
f

65
M

G
D

F
lo

c-
S

ed
/R

ap
id

M
ix

er
D

es
ig

n
-

50
%

ex
pa

ns
io

n
p

14
-0

00
09

20
18

5
11

06
2

53
1.

06
3

50
%

26
5,

53
1

$
31

2,
22

0
53

,7
33

5.
81

C
A

D
U

5O
6O

5
D

uf
f

65
M

G
D

F
lo

c-
S

ed
/R

ap
id

M
ix

er
C

on
st

ru
ct

-
50

%
ex

pa
ns

io
r

14
-0

00
09

20
18

5
11

06
2

6,
30

1,
94

5
50

%
3,

15
0,

97
3

$
3,

70
5,

01
0

53
,7

33
68

.9
5

C
A

D
U

5O
6O

5
D

uf
f6

5
M

G
D

F
lo

c-
S

ed
/R

ap
id

M
ix

er
D

es
ig

n
-

50
%

ex
pa

ns
io

n
p

14
-0

00
09

20
19

4
11

28
1

18
3,

55
3

50
%

91
,7

76
$

10
5,

81
4

53
,7

33
1.

97

C
A

D
U

5O
6O

5
D

uf
f

65
M

G
D

F
lo

c-
S

ed
/R

ap
id

M
ix

er
C

on
st

ru
ct

-
50

%
ex

pa
ns

io
t

14
-0

00
09

20
19

4
11

28
1

2,
17

8,
15

8
50

%
1,

08
9,

07
9

$
1,

25
5,

65
7

53
,7

33
23

.3
7

C
A

M
E

48
81

O
R

og
ue

In
ta

ke
L

an
d

20
11

12
90

74
65

4,
96

8
10

0%
65

4,
96

8
$

93
8,

83
6

53
.7

33
17

.4
7

C
A

M
E

50
54

3
W

et
la

nd
s

M
iti

ga
tio

n
L

an
d

-
D

uf
f

20
15

8
10

03
5

27
5,

36
5

10
0%

27
5,

36
5

$
35

6.
89

9
53

,7
33

6.
64

C
A

D
U

49
O

81
W

et
la

nd
s

M
iti

ga
tio

n
L

an
d

-
PC

T
20

14
9

98
07

44
9,

99
4

10
0%

44
9.

99
4

$
59

6,
84

6
53

,7
33

11
.1

1

C
A

M
E

49
18

O
V

er
na

l
Po

ol
F

en
ce

20
12

11
93

08
11

,7
68

10
0%

11
,7

68
$

16
,4

44
53

,7
33

0.
31

C
A

D
U

50
93

5
D

uf
f

E
ng

in
ee

re
d

L
ag

oo
ns

5-
8

20
21

2
12

13
3

4,
74

1,
20

8
10

0%
4,

74
1,

20
8

$
5,

08
2,

53
9

53
,7

33
94

.5
9

C
A

D
U

51
1O

1
O

zo
ne

G
en

er
at

or
s

D
12

20
22

1
13

00
7

4.
31

6.
30

2
44

%
31

%
59

7,
27

6
$

59
7,

27
6

69
.8

53
8.

55

C
A

D
U

51
1O

3
D

uf
f

C
le

ar
W

el
l

B
af

fl
es

20
22

1
13

00
7

57
9,

91
5

10
0%

31
%

18
2,

37
9

$
18

2,
37

9
69

,8
53

2.
61

F
68

8.
47

6/
14

/2
02

3
P

ag
e

1
of

3

9



E
X

H
IB

IT
A

T
O

R
E

SO
L

U
T

IO
N

19
02

-
PA

G
E

2
O

F
3

M
ed

fo
rd

W
at

er
C

om
m

is
si

on
S

ys
te

m
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

C
ha

rg
e

S
tu

dy
S

ys
te

m
W

id
e

SD
C

C
al

cu
la

ti
on

E
xh

ib
it

I

S
D

C
s

F
or

:
T

R
E

A
T

M
E

N
T

PL
A

N
T

A
N

D
T

R
A

N
S

M
IS

S
IO

N
E

X
PA

N
SI

O
N

-
30

/4
51

65
M

G
D

(4
,5

)
(1

)
(8

)
(1

1)
(3

)
(1

0)
(2

)
(1

)

O
ri

gi
na

l
or

O
ri

gi
na

l
or

Y
ea

rs
in

Se
rv

ic
e

or
Y

ea
r

A
nn

ua
t

A
ve

ra
ge

CC
I

fo
r

P
re

se
nt

E
st

im
at

ed
C

os
t

P
re

se
nt

W
or

th
(P

W
)

C
iP

IA
ss

et
C

ap
ac

ity
-I

nc
re

as
in

g
Pr

oj
ec

t
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
ita

l
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t
P1

.i
ns

ta
tta

tio
a

Y
ea

r
of

E
st

im
at

e
In

st
al

la
tio

n
Y

ea
r

E
st

im
at

ed
A

ss
et

Po
rt

io
n

E
li

gi
bl

e(
S

)
W

IF
IA

Pr
oi

ec
t?

E
st

im
at

ed
SO

C
2

O
5

(
ER

U
s

C
os

t
pe

r
ER

U
($)

(C
on

st
ru

ct
ed

R
ei

m
bu

rs
em

en
t o

r
Fu

tu
re

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t)

C
os

t(
S)

C
os

t
(0

)

—
F

il
te

rA
dd

it
io

n
D

10
20

25
20

22
13

00
7

35
,1

57
,0

00
10

0%
31

%
11

,0
56

,6
20

$
11

,0
56

,6
20

69
,8

53
15

8.
28

D
uf

f
R

es
er

vo
ir

&
P

um
p

S
ta

ti
on

20
25

20
22

13
00

7
38

,6
65

,0
00

10
0%

31
%

12
,1

59
,8

60
$

12
,1

59
,8

60
69

,8
53

17
4.

08
R

iv
er

Z
on

e
(R

ed
uc

ed
Pr

es
su

re
Z

on
e)

St
or

ag
e

&
T

xm
R

-4
20

29
20

22
13

00
7

30
,0

00
.0

00
53

%
31

%
4,

95
3,

26
0

$
4,

95
3,

26
0

69
,8

53
70

.9
1

z

$4
03

27
1

II.
D

U
FF

W
A

T
E

R
T

R
E

A
T

M
E

N
T

PL
A

N
T

O
Z

O
N

E
IM

PR
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

(I
nc

re
as

e
of

25
M

G
D

TO
65

M
G

D
=

40
M

G
D

)

C
A

D
U

46
43

0
O

Z
O

N
E

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

20
03

20
66

95
6,

74
4,

11
0

27
%

1,
83

9,
79

3
$

3,
57

4,
51

7
42

,9
86

83
.1

5

C
A

D
U

46
42

0
O

Z
O

N
E

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

20
03

20
66

95
6,

74
4,

11
0

35
%

2,
34

1,
55

5
$

4,
54

9,
38

5
42

,9
86

10
5.

83
$
1
8
8
9
9

III
.

R
O

G
U

E
R

IV
E

R
T

R
A

N
SM

IS
SI

O
N

P
R

O
JE

C
T

S
(I

n
cr

ea
se

of
20

M
G

D
T

O
65

M
G

D
45

M
G

D
)

—
C

A
D

U
34

O
6O

C
R

A
T

E
R

LA
K

E
36

IN
T

R
A

N
S

M
A

IN
19

81
42

35
35

1,
67

0,
35

1
10

0%
1,

67
0,

35
1

$
6,

14
6,

11
2

48
,3

60
12

7.
09

C
A

D
U

31
36

O
5-

86
36

”
W

E
S

T
S

ID
E

T
R

A
N

S
M

A
IN

19
87

36
44

06
1,

56
4,

69
3

10
0%

1,
56

4,
69

3
$

4,
61

8,
65

4
48

.3
60

95
.5

1
C

A
D

U
36

O
6O

R
O

SS
A

N
L

E
Y

36
”

M
A

IN
W

/S
ID

E
19

94
29

54
08

1,
11

8,
66

9
10

0%
1,

11
8,

66
9

$
2,

69
0,

73
2

48
,3

60
55

.6
4

C
A

D
U

3O
78

O
C

U
N

N
IN

G
H

A
M

/C
O

L
U

M
B

O
V

E
R

IZ
M

W
C

C
os

t
O

nl
y

19
94

29
54

08
77

,8
15

10
0%

77
,8

15
$

18
7,

16
8

48
,3

60
3.

87
C

A
D

U
31

48
O

R
O

G
U

E
T

R
A

N
S/

O
V

E
R

Z
IW

E
ST

FI
E

L
D

M
W

C
C

os
t

O
nl

y
19

95
28

54
71

92
,2

40
10

0%
92

,2
40

$
21

9,
28

7
48

,3
60

4.
53

C
A

D
U

29
36

0
30

”
W

E
S

T
S

ID
E

W
A

T
E

R
LI

N
E

19
95

28
54

71
26

0,
20

1
10

0%
26

0,
20

1
$

61
8,

58
8

48
,3

60
12

.7
9

C
A

D
U

39
36

0
36

”
W

E
S

T
S

ID
E

T
R

A
N

SM
IS

SI
O

N
PH

A
S

19
97

26
58

26
1,

18
0.

71
1

10
0%

1,
18

0,
71

1
$

2,
63

5.
99

8
48

,3
60

54
.5

1
C

A
D

U
44

48
0

ST
E

W
A

R
T

M
A

IN
R

E
PL

A
C

E
M

E
N

T
30

”
20

00
23

62
21

29
3,

71
5

30
%

87
,1

69
$

18
2,

24
9

48
.3

60
3.

77
C

A
D

U
45

50
0

EL
K

C
R

E
E

K
E

S
T

A
T

E
S

O
V

E
R

SI
Z

IN
G

SD
C

M
W

C
C

os
t

O
nl

y
20

02
21

65
38

99
,3

17
10

0%
99

,3
17

$
19

7,
58

3
48

,3
60

4.
09

C
A

D
U

46
45

0
L

O
Z

IE
R

LA
N

E
E

X
T

E
N

SI
O

N
O

V
E

R
SI

Z
IN

G
M

W
C

C
os

t
O

nl
y

20
03

20
66

95
40

,1
03

10
0%

40
,1

03
$

77
,9

16
48

,3
60

1.
61

U
C

A
D

U
48

69
0

L
O

Z
IE

R
LA

N
E

FR
O

M
C

U
N

N
IN

G
H

A
M

A
V

E
T

O
84

3’
20

03
20

66
95

10
6.

25
7

96
%

10
1.

98
3

$
19

8,
14

2
48

,3
60

4.
10

PW
D

U
10

09
O

A
V

E
N

U
E

G
-

T
A

B
L

E
R

O
C

K
-K

IR
T

L
A

N
D

-P
A

C
IF

IC
-1

1
20

11
12

90
74

4,
64

8,
99

6
10

0%
4,

64
8.

99
6

$
6,

66
3,

89
8

48
,3

60
13

7.
80

PW
D

U
10

09
1

A
V

E
N

U
E

G
-

A
T

11
T

H
S

T
R

E
E

T
20

11
12

90
74

23
,9

24
10

0%
23

,9
24

$
34

,2
92

48
,3

60
0.

71
P

W
D

U
10

09
2

T
A

B
L

E
R

O
C

K
R

D
-

A
T

D
U

FF
T

R
E

A
T

M
E

N
T

PL
A

N
T

20
11

12
90

74
18

,7
97

10
0%

18
,7

97
$

26
,9

44
48

,3
60

0.
56

—
$5

06
57

1
IV

.
R

O
G

U
E

T
R

A
N

SM
IS

SI
O

N
C

O
N

T
R

O
L

ST
A

T
IO

N
S

(I
nc

re
as

e
of

15
M

G
D

TO
65

M
G

D
=

50
M

G
D

)
C

A
D

U
26

16
O

C
O

N
R

A
D

PU
M

P
ST

A
T

IO
N

19
89

34
46

15
$2

0,
91

7.
11

10
0%

20
,9

17
$

58
.9

57
53

,7
33

1.
10

C
A

D
U

24
46

0
W

E
S

T
S

ID
E

PU
M

P
ST

A
LA

N
D

19
93

30
52

10
$9

,6
13

.5
0

10
0%

9,
61

4
$

23
,9

98
53

,7
33

0.
45

C
A

D
U

24
20

0
R

O
SS

A
N

L
E

Y
PU

M
P

ST
A

T
IO

N
19

95
28

54
71

$2
26

,7
38

.2
6

10
0%

22
6,

73
8

$
53

9,
03

5
53

,7
33

10
.0

3
“

C
A

D
U

36
40

0
R

O
SS

A
N

L
E

Y
PU

M
P

E
Q

U
IP

19
95

28
54

71
$1

85
,5

13
.1

2
10

0%
18

5,
51

3
$

44
1,

02
8

53
,7

33
8.

21
C

A
D

U
26

56
0

R
O

SS
A

N
L

E
Y

ST
A

T
E

L
E

M
E

T
R

Y
19

95
28

54
71

$4
6,

72
8.

38
10

0%
46

,7
28

$
11

1,
08

9
53

,7
33

2.
07

°‘
C

A
D

U
43

61
O

#2
PU

M
P-

R
O

SS
A

N
L

E
Y

PU
M

P
ST

A
T

IO
N

20
00

23
62

21
$5

7,
43

2.
38

10
0%

57
,4

32
$

12
0,

07
6

53
,7

33
2.

23
,
,

C
A

D
U

50
58

6
P

um
ps

&
P

R
V

s
C

on
tr

ol
S

ta
ti

on
s

(8
2%

)
SD

C
20

14
9

98
07

$1
,4

56
,4

47
.4

2
82

%
1,

19
4,

28
7

$
1,

58
4,

03
4

53
,7

33
29

.4
8

C
A

D
U

50
58

5
M

ar
tin

C
on

tr
ol

S
ta

ti
on

(4
1%

)
SD

C
20

14
9

98
07

$1
,7

06
,4

40
.6

9
41

%
69

9,
64

1
$

92
7,

96
3

53
,7

33
17

.2
7

PM
D

U
5O

6O
5

V
’il

as
R

d
-

T
ab

le
R

oc
k

R
d

to
C

ra
te

r
L

ak
e

20
16

7
10

33
8

$1
,5

54
,4

59
.7

6
10

0%
1,

55
4,

46
0

$
1,

95
5,

71
0

53
,7

33
36

.4
0

—
$1

07
23

1

6/
14

/2
02

3
P

ag
e

2
of

3

10



M
ed

fo
rd

W
at

er
C

o
m

m
is

si
o
n

S
ys

te
m

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t

C
h

ar
g

e
S

tu
d

y
S

ys
te

m
W

id
e

SO
C

C
al

cu
la

ti
on

E
xh

ib
it

I

E
X

H
IB

IT
A

T
O

R
E

SO
L

U
T

IO
N

19
02

-
PA

G
E

3
O

F
3

S
D

C
s

F
or

:
T

R
E

A
T

M
E

N
T

PL
A

N
T

A
N

D
T

R
A

N
SM

IS
SI

O
N

E
X

PA
N

SI
O

N
-

30
14

51
65

M
G

D
(4

,5
)

(7
)

Ii
__

(1
1)

(3
)

(1
0)

(2
)

C
ap

ac
ity

-I
nc

re
as

in
g

Pr
oj

ec
t

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Y
ea

rs
in

Se
rv

ic
e

or
Y

ea
r

A
nn

ua
lA

ve
ra

ge
CC

I,
O

rig
in

al
or

O
ng

tn
al

or
Pr

es
en

t
E

st
im

at
ed

C
os

t
Pr

es
en

t
W

or
th

(P
W

)
ER

U
s

C
IP

/A
ss

et
#

it
al

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t
P1

In
st

al
la

tio
n

Y
ea

r
of

E
st

im
at

e
In

st
al

la
tio

n
Y

ea
r

E
st

im
at

ed
A

ss
et

Po
rti

on
El

ig
ib

le
1%

)
W

IF
IA

Pr
oi

ec
t?

E
st

im
at

ed
SD

C
20

22
$)

C
os

t
pe

r
ER

U
(5

)
(C

on
st

ru
ct

ed
R

ei
m

bu
rs

em
en

to
r

Fu
tu

re
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t)
C

os
t

($1
C

os
t

1$)

—
FU

T
U

R
E

T
R

A
N

SM
IS

SI
O

N
P

R
O

JE
C

T
S

C
ra

te
r

L
ak

e
A

ve
-

S
ou

th
of

M
ar

tin
C

on
tr

ol
S

ta
ti

on
16

”
T

ra
ns

m
i

PL
-7

20
28

20
22

13
00

7
6,

70
0,

00
0

10
0%

6,
70

0,
00

0
$

6,
70

0,
00

0
69

,8
53

95
.9

2

T
ab

le
R

oc
k

R
d

T
ra

ns
m

is
si

on
M

ai
n

PL
-1

PL
-1

20
25

20
22

13
00

7
27

,4
00

,0
00

10
0%

31
%

8,
61

7,
10

0
$

8,
61

7,
10

0
69

,8
53

12
3

36

M
em

m
an

R
d

T
xm

M
ai

n
(C

on
ra

d
C

on
tr

ol
S

ta
ti

on
F

ee
de

r)
PL

-9
20

30
20

22
13

00
7

6,
71

0,
00

0
10

0%
31

%
2,

11
0,

24
6

$
2,

11
0,

24
6

69
,8

53
30

.2
1

Sp
ri

ng
S

tr
ee

t
P

ip
el

in
e

20
32

20
22

13
00

7
5,

70
0,

00
0

10
0%

5,
70

0,
00

0
$

5,
70

0,
00

0
69

,8
53

81
.6

0

—
$3

31
09

1

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

ed
$1

,4
91

.2
6

—
Fu

tu
re

73
4.

36

(1
)

20
22

A
ve

ra
ge

R
at

e:
EN

R
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

C
os

t I
nd

ex
(C

CI
)

13
00

7
R

ei
m

bu
rs

ed
(4

4)
(2

)
Eq

ui
va

le
nt

R
es

id
en

tia
lU

ni
ts,

ER
U

s
=

M
GD

In
cr

ea
se

/M
ax

im
um

D
ay

D
em

an
d

pe
r

ER
U

M
ax

im
um

D
ay

D
em

an
d

pe
r

ER
U

v
93

1
ga

w
da

y
(C

al
cu

la
tio

n
m

ad
e

pe
rf

or
m

ul
a

pg
13

-1
4

of
20

09
SD

C
St

ud
y)

(3
)

Si
nc

e
re

pl
ac

em
en

to
fi

nc
re

as
ed

ca
pa

cd
y

SD
C

pr
oj

ec
tf

ac
ili

tie
s

is
no

ta
llo

w
ed

to
be

ag
ai

n
fu

nd
ed

wi
th

SD
C5

,d
ep

re
ci

at
io

n
is

no
t u

se
d

as
a

fa
ct

or
in

th
es

e
co

sts
. B

lu
e

=
va

ri
ab

le
fa

ct
or

s
ye

ar
to

ye
ar

(4
)

C
ur

re
nt

Y
ea

r
20

23
(5

)
Y

ea
r o

fE
st

im
at

es
20

22
(6

)
Y

ea
r2

01
7

m
ax

d
a
f

58
.9

7
m

gd
,

BB
S

pr
od

uc
es

26
.4

m
gd

,
Pl

an
)

pr
od

uc
tio

n
o

32
.5

7
m

gd
U

lti
m

at
e

Fu
tu

re
Pl

an
tp

ro
du

ct
io

n
eq

ua
lin

g
65

m
gd

m
in

us
Pl

an
tp

ro
du

ct
io

n
of

25
m

gd
eq

ua
ls

40
m

gd
of

ad
di

tio
na

lc
ap

ac
ity

(7
)

Th
e

es
tim

at
ed

co
st

s
fo

r
FU

TU
RE

pr
ot

ec
ts

ar
e

ba
se

d
on

ye
ar

iy
up

da
te

d
10

-Y
rP

la
n,

W
at

er
D

ist
nb

ub
on

Sy
st

em
,a

nd
W

TP
Fa

cil
ity

Pl
an

fig
ur

es
(8

)
Th

e
on

gi
na

lc
os

ts
fo

rC
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TE

D
pr

oj
ec

ts
ar

e
to

ta
l

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
,o

r(
if

no
te

d)
pr

op
or

tio
na

l,
re

im
bu

rs
em

en
t (

bu
y-

in
)

va
lu

es
AL

L
of

w
hi

ch
pr

ov
id

e
ad

di
tio

na
lc

ap
ac

ity
(9

)
M

W
C

re
im

bu
rs

em
en

t
D

O
ES

N
O

T
in

cl
ud

e
in

te
re

st
ov

er
tim

e
on

th
e

ac
tu

al
ex

pe
nd

ed
co

st
s,

an
d

SO
C

ca
lc

ul
at

io
ns

DO
N

O
T

in
cl

ud
e

St
at

e
al

lo
w

ed
co

st
s

fo
rS

D
C

st
ud

ie
s,

pr
og

ra
m

ad
m

in
is

tra
tio

n,
an

d/
or

pr
og

ra
m

ac
co

un
tin

g
(1

0)
lF

ut
ur

e
pr

oj
ec

ts
on

ly
sa

x
us

yo
u

ax
in

du
de

d
in

th
e

SD
C.

15
39

.1
58

.7
05

/1
21

.2
46

.7
96

=
32

.3
%

).
h
sc

,’
ti

,v
v

ix
10

0%
D

av
as

yo
u

o.
(
1
1
)

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

So
ur

ce
s

C
at

eg
or

y
E

st
im

at
ed

D
ol

la
r

Fu
nd

in
q

O
/

1.
W

IF
IA

Lo
an

(c
an

no
te

xc
ee

d
49

%
of

eli
gi

bl
e

co
sts

)
$9

6,
78

8,
31

0
O

Y
b,

(0
U

,3
1U

4
(f

o

2.
R

ev
en

ue
B

on
ds

$4
5,

00
0,

00
0

45
,0

00
,0

00
22

%
3.

SR
F

Lo
an

$0
$0

4.
B

or
ro

w
er

C
as

h
65

,0
48

,7
41

.3
7

65
,0

48
,7

41
31

%
5.

Pr
ev

io
us

ly
In

cu
rre

d
El

ig
ib

le
C

os
ts

*
0

6.
O

th
er

(p
le

as
e

sp
ec

ify
)

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

TO
TA

L
SO

U
RC

ES
$2

06
,8

37
,0

51
$2

06
,8

37
,0

51

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

U
N

A
N

U
tO

tA
L

2
,2

2
b
.b

2

C
al

cu
la

te
d

$2
,2

25
.6

2
E

xi
st

in
g

$2
,0

53
.5

1

E
N

R
-C

C
I

20
20

S
ep

t
11

,4
99

E
N

R
C

C
I

20
21

A
pr

il
11

,8
49

In
de

x
C

ha
ng

e
1.

03

E
xi

st
in

g
up

da
te

d
to

A
pr

il
$2

.1
16

.0
1

C
al

cu
la

te
d

U
pd

at
ed

to
A

pr
il

$2
,2

93
.3

6
D

ol
la

r
D

if
fe

re
nc

e
$1

77
.3

5

N
O

TE
:

Ex
is

lin
g

fil
te

r
re

bu
ild

s,
di

si
nf

ec
tio

n
up

gr
ad

es
,e

le
ct

nc
al

up
gr

ad
es

,
in

ta
ke

up
gr

ad
es

,
la

go
on

up
gr

ad
es

,
an

d
ea

rth
qu

ak
e

ha
rd

en
in

g
ar

e
no

t
pa

rt
of

SD
C

s
an

d
do

no
tp

ro
vi

de
ad

di
tio

na
lc

ap
ac

iti
es

.

Il
l

U
pd

at
ed

A
pr

ii
20

23

6/
14

/2
02

3
P

ag
e

3
of

3

11



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
Between Jackson County, the City of Talent, and the City of Phoenix

For Fuel Reduction Work on the Bear Creek Greenway

THIS NTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (hereinafter “Agreement”) is entered into
by and between the CITY OF TALENT, (hereinafter “Talent”), the CiTY OF PHOENIX,
(hereinafter “Phoenix”), and JACKSON COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Oregon
(hereinafter “County”), collectively referenced as the PARTIES, for fuel reduction work along
the Bear Creek Greenway, (hereinafter “Greenway”).

WHEREAS, the Almeda Fire and an unnamed fire in Central Point burned publicly owned
land along the Bear Creek Greenway, resulting in copious amounts of dead, woody materials and
extensive amounts of regrowth, making access difficult; and

WHEREAS, the Parties have received funding from the Oregon State Fire Marshall (OSFM)
for the purposes of mitigating fire concerns, performing fuel reduction work, and increasing
access for restoration and fire purposes along the Greenway; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the public for the Parties to collaborate on the work
for efficiency purposes; and

WHEREAS, the County has agreed to manage the work and be reimbursed by Talent and
Phoenix, and.

WHEREAS, Talent, Phoenix and the County are authorized to enter into such an agreement
pursuant to Chapter 190 of the Oregon Revised Statutes.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms and conditions contained herein, it is
mutually agreed by the RVCOG and COUNTY as follows:

1. Talent Oblhations

A. Provide access to city owned lands that are part of the project area for contractors to
perform services in a timely manner.

B. Perform all necessary reporting requirements on behalf of Talent for Oregon State
Fire Marshall Grant requirements.

2. Phoenix Obli.’ations

A. Provide access to city owned lands that are part of the project area for contractors to
perform services in a timely manner.

B. Perform all necessary reporting requirements on behalf of Phoenix for Oregon State

OSFM IGA- Talent, Phoenix, Jackson County 2023

12



Fire Marshall Grant requirements.

3. COUNTY Oblications

A. Contract for fuel reduction services that are generally in line with the Purpose and
Scope, as listed in the attached Exhibit B, Grant Agreement, 2023 Community
Wildfire Risk Reduction Program (“CWRR “) Grant Agreement Number: 2023-
CWRR-037. County may contract for consultant services to assist in the technical
portions of contract administration, as well as a separate contract for fuel reduction
work. County shall provide a draft contract Scope of Work to Talent and Phoenix
prior to fmalization. Work will remain outside of established Riparian areas.

B. Provide sufficient details on work completed, work plan and any other information, as
requested by Talent and Phoenix for completion of OSFM grant reports.

C. Perform all necessary reporting requirements on behalf of County for Oregon State
Fire Marshall Grant requirements.

4. PAYMENT

A. County shall provide invoices for work performed under the terms of this
Agreement to Talent and Phoenix within 30 calendar days of the end of the
previous month. Invoices shall be sent to the address and contacts listed in
Section 13.

B. Within 30 days of receiving monthly invoice Talent and Phoenix shall provide
payment to County.

C. County will not charge for administration purposes and will only invoice for work
performed by contractors.

D. Work performed under this Agreement shall not exceed the following amounts
per Party:

a. Talent- $75,000
b. Phoenix- $125,000
c. Jackson County- $485,000

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Indemnification. Subject to the conditions and limitations of the Oregon Tort Claims Act
and the Oregon Constitution, the PARTIES shall indemnify and hold harmless each other
as follows. The provisions of this paragraph shall survive termination of this Agreement.

OSFM 1GA- Talent, Phoenix, Jackson County 2023 2

13



1.1 IndemnUlcation by Talent. Talent shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the

County and Phoenix, their elected officials, officers, deputies, employees and agents

from any and all costs, claims, judgments or awards of damages resulting from claims

concerning acts or omissions of Talent, its officers, employees, elected officials, or

agents acting under this Agreement.

1.2 Indemnification by Phoenix. Phoenix shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the

County and Talent, their elected officials, officers, deputies, employees and agents

from any and all costs, claims, judgments or awards of damages resulting from claims

concerning acts or omissions of Phoenix, its officers, employees, elected officials, or

agents acting under this Agreement.
1.3 Indemnfication by County. The COUNTY shall defend, indenmify and hold harmless

the Talent and Phoenix, their elected officials, officers, deputies, employees and

agents from any and all costs, claims, judgments or awards of damages resulting from

claims concerning acts or omissions of the COUNTY, its officers, employees, elected

officials, or agents acting under this Agreement.

2. pliance withLaws. Each party shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws in

the performance of its rights and obligations under this Agreement.

3. Intended Beneflciaries. County, Talent, and Phoenix are the only parties to this

Agreement and are the only parties entitled to enforce its terms. Nothing in this

Agreement provides, is intended to provide, or may be construed to provide any direct or

indirect benefit or right to any third persons.

4. Attorne Fees. Neither party to this Agreement is entitled to obtain judgment from the

other party for fees it has incurred in any litigation between the parties or in defense of

any claim asserted by a third party.

5. Amendments. This Agreement may be amended at any time by the mutual written

agreement of the Parties.

6. entire_Acement. This Agreement contains the complete understanding of the parties

with respect to the subject matter hereoL Any prior agreements, promises, negotiations,

or representations of or between the parties, either oral or written, relating to the subject

matter of this Agreement, which are not expressly set forth in this Agreement, are null

and void and of no further force or effect.

7. WLver. The waiver by either party of a breach or violation of any provision of this

Agreement shall not operate or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach

thereof. No delay or failure to require performance of any provision of this Agreement

shall constitute a waiver of that provision as to that or any other instance.

8. Severabilit\. If any of the provisions contained in this Agreement are held illegal, invalid,

or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions shall

OSFM IGA- Talent, Phoenix, Jackson County 2023 3

14



remain in full force and effect.

9. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts (facsimile or
otherwise) all of which when taken together shall constitute one agreement binding on all
Parties, notwithstanding that all Parties are not signatories to the same counterpart. Each
copy of this Agreement so executed shall constitute an original.

10. Debt Limitation. This Agreement is expressly subject to the debt limitation of the Oregon
counties set forth in Article XI, Section 10, of the Oregon Constitution, and is contingent
upon funds being appropriated therefore.

11. Term. The term of this shall commence on the date that it become fully executed and
shall terminate at midnight December 31, 2024.

12. Termination.

A. For Breach. This Agreement may be terminated in the event of a breach of the
Agreement by any party. Prior to such termination the party seeking termination shall
give to the other party written notice of the breach and intent to terminate. If the party
committing the breach has not entirely cured the breach within 15 days of the date of
notice, or within such period as the party giving notice may authorize or require, then
the Agreement may be terminated at any time thereafter by a written notice of
termination by the party giving notice. The rights and remedies of the parties
provided in this subsection are not exclusive and are in addition to any other rights
and remedies provided by law or under this Agreement.

B. For Convenience. Either party may terminate this Agreement for convenience by
providing not less than 15 days’ notice to the other party.

13. Notice. Any notice to another party of this Agreement that is required or permitted under
this Agreement is deemed received: three (3) days after deposited in the United States
mail, certified and postage paid, and addressed to the address set forth below or to such
other address as may be specified from time to time by either of the parties in writing; or
by confirmed delivery date by facsimile or overnight mail; or upon the date of personal
delivery or service.

Jackson Count’.:
Steve Lambert, Roads and Parks Director
200 Antelope Rd.
White City, Oregon 97503

OSFM IGA- Talent, Phoenix, Jackson County 2023 4

15



Talent:
Robert Slayton, Public Works Superintendent

P0 Box 445
Talent, OR 97540

Phoenix:
Community and Economic Development Director, Joe Slaughter

220 NI Main St.
Phoenix, OR 97535

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties have caused this Agreement to be signed in their

respective names by their duly authorized representatives as of the dates set forth below.

JACKSON COUNTY:

Danny Jordan, County Administrator

Date:

Date:

PHOENIX:

Eric Swanson, City Manager

Date:

S

TALE

yn, City Manager

OSFM IGA- Talent, Phoenix, Jackson County 2023

16



Ii

JACKSON COUNTY
JACKSON
COUNTY

This map is based on a digital database compiled by
Jackson County from a variety of sources.

Jackson County cannot accept responsibility for
errors, omissions, or positional accuracy.

There are no warranties, eopressed or implied.

OSFM Treatment Area
South- 85 acres approximately (including riparian area)

Legend A
0 0.075 0.15 0.3

Miles

17



P’ .fl.

: L

A
0 0.05 0.1 0.2

JACKSON COUNTY
JACKSON
cTh1cY

This map is based on a digital database compiled by
Jackson County from a variety of sources.

Jackson County cannot accept responsibility for
errors, omissions, or positional accuracy.

There are no warranties, expressed or implied.

b

‘.1-’

N.

OSFM Treatment Area
North- 60 acres approximately (including riparian area)

Legend

I .

Treatment Areas
Miles

18



GRANT AGREEMENT

Title: 2023 Community Wildfire Risk Reduction Program (“CWRR”) Grant

Agreement Number: 2023-CWRR-0 18

This grant agreement (“Agreement”), dated as of the date the Agreement is fully executed, is made by the
State of Oregon, acting by and through its Department of State Police, for the benefit of its Office of State
Fire Marshal (“OSFM”), and City of Phoenix (“Recipient”). This Agreement becomes effective only when
fully signed and approved as required by applicable law (the “Effective Date”) and, unless earlier
terminated, expires on May 3 1, 2026 (the “Expiration Date”). The period from the Effective Date through
the Expiration Date is hereinafter referred to as the “Grant Term.”

Pursuant to Section 9 of Oregon Laws 2021, chapter 592 (SB 762) (the “Act”), the Oregon Legislature
established the Community Risk Reduction Fund for the purpose of carrying out community risk reduction
arid the local government financial assistance described in Section 8a of the Act. Section 8a of the Act, in
turn, directs OSFM to administer a community risk reduction program that emphasizes education and
methods of prevention with respect to wildfire risk, enforcement of defensible space requirements,
response planning and community preparedness for wildfires. Section 8 of the Act defines “defensible
space” as “a natural or human-made area in which material capable of supporting the spread of fire has
been treated, cleared or modified to slow the rate and intensity of advancing wildfire and allow space for
fire suppression operations to occur.”

This Agreement sets forth the terms and conditions of Recipient’s receipt of a CWRR Grant and includes
the following exhibits:

Exhibit A: Project Description and Reporting Requirements
Exhibit B: Subcontract Insurance Requirements

[ SECTION 1 — GRANT

OSFM shall provide Recipient, and Recipient shall accept from OSFM, a grant in the amount of
$247600.00 (the “Grant”).

Conditions Precedent. OSFM’s obligations are subject to the receipt of the following items, in form and
substance satisfactory to OSFM and its counsel:

(1) This Agreement duly signed by an authorized officer of Recipient; and

(2) Such other certificates, documents, opinions, and information as OSFM may reasonably require.

SECTION 2 - DISBURSEMENT

A. Full Disbursement. Upon satisfaction of all condition’s precedent, OSFM shall disburse the full Grant
to Recipient.

B. Condition to Disbursement. OSFM has no obligation to disburse funds unless, in the reasonable
exercise of its administrative discretion, it has sufficient funding, appropriations, limitations,
allotments and other expenditure authority to make the disbursement.

SECTION 3 - USE OF GRANT

A. Use of Grant Moneys.

2023-CWRR-018 City of Phoenix.docx Page 1 of 11

19



Recipient shall use the Grant only for the activities described in Exhibit A.

B. RESERVED

SEcTIoN 4 - REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF RECIPIENT I
Recipient represents and warrants to OS FM:

A. Organization and Authority.

(1) Recipient is a public body validly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Oregon.

(I) Recipient is a nonprofit, non-governmental organization validly organized and existing under
the laws of the State of Oregon.

(2) Recipient has all necessary right, power and authority under its organizational documents and
under Oregon law to (a) execute and deliver this Agreement, (b) incur and perform its obligations
under this Agreement, and (c) receive the Grant funds.

(3) This Agreement has been authorized by an ordinance, order or resolution of Recipient’s
governing body.

(4) This Agreement has been duly executed by Recipient, and when executed by OSFM, is legal,
valid and binding, and enforceable in accordance with their terms.

B. Full Disclosure. Recipient has disclosed in writing to OSFM all facts that materially adversely affect
its ability to perform all obligations required by this Agreement. Recipient has made no false
statements of fact, nor has it omitted information necessary to prevent any statements from being
misleading. The information contained in this Agreement is true and accurate in all respects.

C. Pending Litigation. Recipient has disclosed in writing to OSFM all proceedings pending (or to the
knowledge of Recipient, threatened) against or affecting Recipient, in any court or before any
governmental authority or arbitration board or tribunal, that, if adversely determined, would materially
adversely affect the ability of Recipient to perform all obligations required by this Agreement.

D. No DefauLts. No Defaults or Events of Default exist or occur upon authorization, execution or delivery
of this Agreement.

E. Compliance with Existing Agreements and Applicable Law. The authorization and execution of, and
the performance of all obligations required by, this Agreement will not: (1) cause a breach of any
agreement or instrument to which Recipient is a party; (ii) violate any provision of the charter or other
document pursuant to which Recipient was organized or established; or (iii) violate any laws,
regulations, ordinances, resolutions, or court orders related to Recipient or its properties or operations.

SECTION 5 - COVENANTS OF REciPIENT

Recipient covenants as follows:

A. Notice of Adverse Change. Recipient shall promptly notify OSFM of any adverse change in the
activities, prospects or condition (financial or otherwise) of Recipient related to the ability of Recipient
to perform all obligations required by this Agreement.

B. Compliance with Laws. Recipient shall comply with all applicable laws, rules, regulations and orders
of any court or governmental authority that relate to this Agreement.

C. Grant Report. Recipient must submit to OSFM reports as outlined in Exhibit A. Recipient shall further
provide any related reports and information as OSFM may reasonably request.

2023-CWRR-018 City of Phoenix.docx Page 2 of 1 1

20



D. Insurance. RESERVED.

E. Books and Records. Recipient shall keep accurate books and records of the uses of the Grant and
maintain them according to generally accepted accounting principles.

F. Inspections; Information. Recipient shall permit OSFM and any party designated by OSFM to inspect
and make copies, at any reasonable time, of any accounts, books and records, including, without
limitation, its records regarding receipts, disbursements, contracts, investments and any other related
matters. Recipient shall supply any related reports and information as OSFM may reasonably require.

G. Records Maintenance. Recipient shall retain and keep accessible all books, documents, papers, and
records that are directly related to this Agreement for a minimum of six years beyond the later of the
final and total expenditure or disposition of the Grant. If there are unresolved issues at the end of such
period, Recipient shall retain the books, documents, papers and records until the issues are resolved.

H. Notice of Default. Recipient shall give OSFM prompt written notice of any Event of Default as soon
as any senior administrative or financial officer of Recipient becomes aware of its existence or
reasonably believes an Event of Default is likely.

I. Contribution and Recipient Subcontracts.

1) Contribution.

i. If any third party makes any claim or brings any action, suit or proceeding alleging a
tort as now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260 (“Third Party Claim”) against a party
(the “Notified Party”) with respect to which the other party (“Other Party”) may have
liability, the Notified Party must promptly notify the Other Party in writing of the Third
Party Claim and deliver to the Other Party a copy of the claim, process, and all legal
pleadings with respect to the Third Party Claim. Either party is entitled to participate
in the defense of a Third Party Claim, and to defend a Third Party Claim with counsel
of its own choosing. Receipt by the Other Party of the notice and copies required in this
paragraph and meaningful opportunity for the Other Party to participate in the
investigation, defense and settlement of the Third Party Claim with counsel of its own
choosing are conditions precedent to the Other Party’s liability with respect to the Third
Party Claim.

ii. With respect to a Third Party Claim for which the State is jointly liable with Recipient
(or would be ifjoined in the Third Party Claim), the State shall contribute to the amount
ofexpenses (including attorneys’ fees),judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement
actually and reasonably incurred and paid or payable by Recipient in such proportion
as is appropriate to reflect the relative fault of the State on the one hand and of Recipient
on the other hand in connection with the events which resulted in such expenses,
judgments, fines or settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant equitable
considerations. The relative fault of the State on the one hand and of Recipient on the
other hand shall be determined by reference to, among other things, the parties’ relative
intent, knowledge, access to information and opportunity to correct or prevent the
circumstances resulting in such expenses,judgments, fines or settlement amounts. The
State’s contribution amount in any instance is capped to the same extent it would have
been capped under Oregon law if the State had sole liability in the proceeding.

iii. With respect to a Third Party Claim for which Recipient is jointly liable with the State
(or would be if joined in the Third Party Claim), Recipient shall contribute to the
amount of expenses (including attorneys’ fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in
settlement actually and reasonably incurred and paid or payable by the State in such

2023-CWRR-018 City of Phoenix.docx Page 3 of I I

21



proportion as is appropriate to reflect the relative fault of Recipient on the one hand
and of the State on the other hand in connection with the events which resulted in such
expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant
equitable considerations. The relative fault of Recipient on the one hand and of the
State on the other hand shall be determined by reference to, among other things, the
parties’ relative intent, knowledge, access to information and opportunity to correct or
prevent the circumstances resulting in such expenses, judgments, fines or settlement
amounts. Recipient’s contribution amount in any instance is capped to the same extent
it would have been capped under Oregon law if it had sole liability in the proceeding.

2) Recipient Subcontracts. Recipient may enter into agreements with contractors or
subcontractors (collectively, “Subcontracts”) for performance of the Project.

i. Recipient shall take all reasonable steps to cause its contractor(s) that arc not units of
local government as defined in ORS 190.003, if any, to indemnify, defend, save and
hold harmless the State of Oregon and its officers, employees and agents
(“Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, damages,
losses, or expenses (including attorneys’ fees) arising from a tort (as now or hereafter
defined in ORS 30.260) caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the
negligent or wilLful acts or omissions of Recipient’s contractor or any of the officers,
agents, employees or subcontractors of the contractor (“Claims”). It is the specific
intention of the parties that the lndemnitee shall, in all instances, except for Claims
arising solely from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the Indemnitee, be
indemnified by the contractor from and against any and all Claims.

ii. Recipient shall require its first-tier contractor(s) that are not units of local government
as defined in ORS 190.003, if any, to: i) obtain insurance of the types and in the
amounts specified in Exhibit 13 and meeting the requirements under ADDITIONAL
INSURED, NOTICE OF CANCELLATION OR CHANGE, and CERTIFICATES OF
INSURANCE before the contractors perform under its Subcontracts, and ii) maintain
the insurance in full force throughout the duration of the Subcontracts. The insurance
must be provided by insurance companies or entities that are authorized to transact the
business of insurance and issue coverage in the State of Oregon and that are acceptable
to OSFM. Recipient shall not authorize contractors to begin work under the
Subcontracts until the insurance is in full force. Thereafter, Recipient shall monitor
continued compliance with the insurance requirements on an annual or more frequent
basis. Recipient shall incorporate appropriate provisions in the Subcontracts permitting
it to enforce contractor compliance with the insurance requirements and shall take all
reasonable steps to enforce such compliance. Examples of “reasonable steps” include
issuing stop work orders (or the equivalent) until the insurance is in full force or
terminating the Subcontracts as permitted by the Subcontracts or pursuing legal action
to enforce the insurance requirements. In no event shall Recipient permit a contractor
to work under a Subcontract when Recipient is aware that the contractor is not in
compliance with the insurance requirements. As used in this section, a “first tier”
contractor is a contractor with which Recipient directly enters into a contract. It does
not include a subcontractor with which the contractor enters into a contract.

I. Return of Unexpended Grant Funds. No later than April 30. 2026, Recipient shall return to OSFM all
Grant funds not expended by the Expiration Date.

2023-CWRR-Ol8CityofPhoenix.docx Page 4 of 11

22



SEcTIoN 6 - DEFAULTS

Any of the following constitutes an “Event of Default”:

A. Any false or misleading representation is made by or on behalf of Recipient, in this Agreement or in
any document provided by Recipient related to this Grant.

B. Recipient fails to perform any obligation required under this Agreement, other than those referred to
in subsection A of this section 6, and that failure continues for a period of 10 business days after
written notice specifying such failure is given to Recipient by OSFM. OSFM may agree in writing to
an extension of time if it determines Recipient instituted and has diligently pursued corrective action.

SECTION 7 - REMEDIES I
A. Remedies. Upon any Event of Default, OSFM may pursue any or all remedies in this Agreement and

any other remedies available at law or in equity to enforce the performance of any obligation of
Recipient. Remedies may include, but are not limited to any one or more of the following:

(1) Terminating OSFM’s commitment and obligation to make the Grant.

(2) Barring Recipient from applying for future awards.

(3) Withholding amounts otherwise due to Recipient for application to the payment of amounts due
under this Agreement.

(4) Requiring repayment of the Grant and all interest earned by Recipient on those Grant funds.

B. Application of Moneys. Any moneys collected by OSFM pursuant to section 7.A will be applied first,
to pay any attorneys’ fees and other fees and expenses incurred by OSFM; then, as applicable,
to repay any Grant proceeds owed; then, to pay other amounts due and payable under this
Agreement, if any.

C. No Remedy Exclusive; Waiver; Notice. No remedy available to OSFM is intended to be exclusive,
and every remedy will be in addition to every other remedy. No delay or omission to exercise any right
or remedy will impair or is to be construed as a waiver of such right or remedy. No single or partial
exercise of any right power or privilege under this Agreement will preclude any other or further
exercise thereof or the exercise of any other such right, power or privilege. OSFM is not required to
provide any notice in order to exercise any right or remedy, other than notice required in section 7 of
this Agreement.

SECTIONS - MISCELLANEOUS I
A. Time is of the Essence. Recipient agrees that time is of the essence under this Agreement.

B. Relationship of Parties; Successors and Assigns; No Third-Party Beneficiaries.

(1) The parties agree that their relationship is that of independent contracting parties and that
Recipient is not an officer, employee, or agent of the State of Oregon as those terms are used in
ORS 30.265.

(2) Nothing in this Agreement gives, or is to be construed to give, directly or indirectly, to any third
persons any rights and benefits greater than those enjoyed by the general public.

(3) This Agreement will be binding upon and inure to the benefit of OSFM, Recipient, and their
respective successors and permitted assigns.

2023-CWRR-018 City of Phoenix.docx Page 5 of 11

23



(4) Recipient may not assign or transfer any of its rights or obligations or any interest in this
Agreement without the prior written consent of OSFM. OSFM may grant, withhold or impose
conditions on such consent in its sole discretion. In the event of an assignment, Recipient shall
pay, or cause to be paid to OSFM, any fees or costs incurred because of such assignment,
including but not limited to attorneys’ fees of OSFM’s counsel. Any approved assignment is not
to be construed as creating any obligation of OSFM beyond those in this Agreement, nor does
assignment relieve Recipient of any of its duties or obligations under this Agreement.

C. Disclaimer of Warranties: Limitation of Liability. Recipient agrees that:

(1) OSFM makes no warranty or representation.

(2) In no event are OSFM or its agents liable or responsible for any direct, indirect, incidental,
special, consequential or punitive damages in connection with or arising out of this Agreement.

D. Notices and Communication. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, any
communication between the parties or notices required or permitted must be given in writing by
personal delivery, email, or by mailing the same, postage prepaid, to Recipient or OSFM at the
addresses set forth below, or to such other persons or addresses that either party may subsequently
indicate pursuant to this Section.

Any communication or notice by personal delivery will be deemed effective when actually delivered
to the addressee. Any communication or notice so addressed and mailed will be deemed to be received
and effective five (5) days after mailing. Any communication or notice given by email becomes
effective 1) upon the sender’s receipt of confirmation generated by the recipient’s email system that
the notice has been received by the recipient’s email system or 2) the recipient’s confirmation of
receipt, whichever is earlier. Notwithstanding this provision, the following notices may not be given
by email: notice of default or notice of termination.

If to OSFM: Grant Manager
Office of State Fire Marshal
3565 Trelstad Ave. SE
Salem, OR 97317
Ph: 503-779-8364
Email: osfm.grants@osp.oregon.gov

If to Recipient: Peter Town
Grant Writer
City of Phoenix
220 N. Main Street
Phoenix, OR. 97535
(54!) 423-1374
ptownrvcog.org

E. No Construction against Drafter. This Agreement is to be construed as if the parties drafted it jointly.

F. Severability. If any term or condition of this Agreement is declared by a court of competent jurisdiction
as illegal, invalid or unenforceable, that holding will not invalidate or otherwise affect any other
provision.

G. Amendments, Waivers. This Agreement may not be amended without the prior written consent of
OSFM (and when required, the Department of Justice) and Recipient. This Agreement may not be
amended in a manner that is not in compliance with the Authorization. No waiver or consent is

2023-CWRR-018 City of Phoenix.docx Page 6 of 11

24



effective unless in writing and signed by the party against whom such waiver or consent is sought to
be enforced. Such waiver or consent will be effective only in the specific instance and for the specific
purpose given.

H. Attorneys’ Fees and Other Expenses. To the extent permitted by the Oregon Constitution and the
Oregon Tort Claims Act, the prevailing party in any dispute arising from this Agreement is entitled to
recover its reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs at trial and on appeal. Reasonable attorneys’ fees
cannot exceed the rate charged to OSFM by its attorneys.

I. Choice of Law; Designation of Forum; Federal Forum. The laws of the State of Oregon (without giving
effect to its conflicts of law principles) govern all matters arising out of or relating to this Agreement,
including, without limitation, its validity, interpretation, construction, performance, and enforcement.

Any party bringing a legal action or proceeding against any other party arising out of or relating to
this Agreement shall bring the legal action or proceeding in the Circuit Court of the State of Oregon
for Marion County (unless Oregon law requires that it be brought and conducted in another county).
Each party hereby consents to the exclusive jurisdiction of such court, waives any objection to venue,
and waives any claim that such forum is an inconvenient forum.

Notwithstanding the prior paragraph, if a claim must be brought in a federal forum, then it must be brought
and adjudicated solely and exclusively within the United States District Court for the District of Oregon.
This paragraph applies to a claim brought against the State of Oregon only to the extent Congress has
appropriately abrogated the State of Oregon’s sovereign immunity and is not consent by the State of
Oregon to be sued in federal court. This paragraph is also not a waiver by the State of Oregon of any
form of defense or immunity, including but not limited to sovereign immunity and immunity based on
the Eleventh Amendment to the Constitution of the United States.

J. Integration. This Agreement (including all exhibits, schedules or attachments) constitutes the entire
agreement between the parties on the subject matter. There are no unspecified understandings,
agreements or representations, oral or written, regarding this Agreement.

K. Survival. The following provisions, including this one, survive expiration or termination of this
Agreement: Sections 5.E., 5.F., 5.G., 5.1., 5.J., 7 and 8.

L. Execution in Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed in several counterparts, each of which is
an original and all of which constitute one and the same instrument.

Recipient, by its signature below, acknowledges that it has read this Agreement, understands it, and agrees
to be bound by its terms and conditions.

STATE OF OREGON
CITY OF PHOENIX

acting by and through its
Oregon State Police on behalf of Oregon State

Fire Marshal’s Office

By: By:
0 I

Date: 5/18/2023 Date:

r—-------
-. lS.2

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY IN ACCORDANCE WITH ORS 291.047:

Approved via email by Samuel Zeigler on 1/18/2023
Senior Assistant Attorney General

2023-CWRR-018 City of Phoenix.docx Page 7 of 11

25



EXHIBIT A - PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

Purpose and Scope

The purpose of this Grant is to award dollars for defensible space available to protect people,
property, and communities from wildfire through community risk reduction programs and
projects. See the 2022 CWRR Grant Application and Manual for more information. The
defensible space work needs to match OSFM’s standards described at this link:
https://www.oregon.gov/osp/programs/sfm/pages/oregon-defensible-space-code.aspx

Recipient shall implement the following projects.

A. Project 1: ($125,600.00) Recipient shall implement hazardous fuel reduction
treatments on twenty-five acres of dense fire-prone tree debris and vegetation along
the Bear Creek greenway that runs through and adjacent to the City of Phoenix.
This Project will mitigate the potential for fire risk intensity by implementing tree
and vegetation treatment practices to mitigate fire risk and prepare for the seasonal
threat of historically uncharacteristic fire disturbance being accelerated due to
exponential climate change.

B. Recipient shall reduce hazardous ladder fuels by removing a prescribed percentage
of the dense and highly flammable debris and vegetation in the greenway.

C. Recipient shall follow treatment practice guidance from the Rogue Valley
Integrated Fire plan in the dry-forest environment of the Bear Creek corridor to
significantly reduce ladder fuels. Ladder fuels will be disposed of through pile
burning, cutting, chipping, or scattering.

D. Recipient shall prioritize work that mitigates fire risk to the most vulnerable
populations first.

E. Project 2: (50,000.00) Recipient shall use grant funds to purchase a commercial
chipper and dump trailer to maintain fuel reduction activities along the Bear Creek
Greenway where it runs through and adjacent to the city. The equipment would
allow the city to not be dependent on borrowing chippers from other jurisdictions
or paying for fuel reduction crews to maintain fuel reduction activities in areas
along the greenway that present a clear wildfire risk to the City of Phoenix.

F. Project 3: (72,000.00) Recipient shall purchase a specialized tractor along with
required attachments such as, forestry muicher to maintain fuel reduction activities
along the Bear Creek Greenway where it runs through and adjacent to the city.

G. Recipient shall use tractor to keep egress into the greenway open throughout the
year, a critical factor for creating a landscape is a fire resilient area as it allows for
fire response into hard to reach places and makes ongoing maintenance easier.

2023-CWRR-Ol8CityofPhoenixdocx Page 8 of 11

26



II. Reporting Requirements

1. Recipient shall provide OSFM with a progress report in each of the following months: June
2023; December 2023; June 2024; December 2024; June 2025; and December 2025.
Recipient shall provide a final progress report no later than April 15, 2026. Each progress
report shall include Recipient’s updated work plan.

2. Before each reporting month, OSFM will email Recipient a link to the electronic report due for
that month.

3. If Recipient completes the Project and expends all Grant funds before March 3 1, 2026, it may
close out the program upon submission of a final report to OSFM.

4. Recipient shall attend a kick-off meeting either in-person or virtual and notification will be sent to
Recipient via email with details.

2023-CWRR-018 City of Phoenix.docx Page 9 of 11

27



EXHIBIT B — SUBCONTRACT INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS I
Recipient shall require each of its first-tier contractors that are not units of local government as defined in
ORS 190.003 (each a “Contractor”) to obtain, at the Contractor’s expense, the insurance specified in this
Exhibit B before performing under this Contract and to maintain it in full force and at the Contractor’s own
expense throughout the duration of this Contract, as required by any extended reporting period or continuous
claims made coverage requirements, and all warranty periods that apply. Contractors shall obtain the
following insurance from insurance companies or entities that are authorized to transact the business of
insurance and issue coverage in the State of Oregon and that are acceptable to OSFM. Coverage shall be
primary and non-contributory with any other insurance and self-insurance, with the exception of Professional
Liability and Workers’ Compensation. Contractors shall pay for all deductibles, self-insured retention and
self-insurance, if any. Recipient shall require and ensure that each of its Contractors complies with these
requirements and maintains insurance policies with responsible insurers, insuring against liability, in the
coverages and amounts identified below.

WORKERS’ COMPENSATION & EMPLOYERS’ LIABILITY
All employers, including Contractors, that employ subject workers, as defined in ORS 656.027, shall comply
with ORS 656.017 and provide workers’ compensation insurance coverage for those workers, unless they
meet the requirement for an exemption under ORS 656.126(2). Recipient shall require and ensure that each
of its Contractors complies with these requirements. If a Contractor is a subject employer, as defined in ORS
656.023, the Contractor shall also obtain employers’ liability insurance coverage with limits not less than
$500,000 each accident. If the Contractor is an employer subject to any other state’s workers’ compensation
law, Contactor shall provide workers’ compensation insurance coverage for its employees as required by
applicable workers’ compensation laws including employers’ liability insurance coverage with limits not less
than $500,000 and shall require and ensure that each of its out-of-state subcontractors complies with these
requirements.

As applicable, each Contractor shall obtain coverage to discharge all responsibilities and liabilities that arise
out of or relate to the Jones Act with limits of no less than $5,000,000 and/or the Longshoremen’s and
Harbor Workers’ Compensation Act.

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY:
Required Notrequired
Commercial General Liability Insurance covering bodily injury and property damage in a form and with
coverage that are satisfactory to the State. This insurance shall include personal and advertising injury
liability, products and completed operations, contractual liability coverage for the indemnity provided under
this contract, and have no limitation of coverage to designated premises, project or operation. Coverage shall
be written on an occurrence basis in an amount of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. Annual aggregate
limit shall not be less than $2,000,000.

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY INSURANCE:
Required j Notrequired
Automobile Liability Insurance covering each Contractor’s business use including coverage for all owned,
non-owned, or hired vehicles with a combined single limit of not less than $1 ,000,000 for bodily injury and
property damage. This coverage may be written in combination with the Commercial General Liability
Insurance (with separate limits for Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability). Use of personal
automobile liability insurance coverage may be acceptable if evidence that the policy includes a business use
endorsement is provided.

2023-CWRR-Ol8CityofPhoenix.docx Page 10 of 11

28



EXCESS/UMBRELLA INSURANCE
Umbrella insurance coverage in the sum of $2,000,000 shall be provided and will apply over all liability
policies, without exception, including but not limited to Commercial General Liability, Automobile Liability,
and Employers’ Liability coverage. The amounts of insurance for the insurance required under this Contract,
including this Excess/Umbrella insurance requirement, may be met by the Contractor obtaining coverage for
the limits specified under each type of required insurance or by any combination of underlying, excess and
umbrella limits so long as the total amount of insurance is not less than the limits specified for each type of
required insurance added to the limit for this excess/umbrella insurance requirement.

ADDITIONAL INSURED:
All liability insurance, except for Workers’ Compensation, Professional Liability, and Network Security and
Privacy Liability (if applicable), required under this Contract must include an additional insured
endorsement specifying the State of Oregon, its officers, employees and agents as Additional Insureds,
including additional insured status with respect to liability arising out of ongoing operations and completed
operations, but only with respect to a Contractor’s activities to be performed under this Contract. Coverage
shall be primary and non-contributory with any other insurance and self-insurance. The Additional Insured
endorsement with respect to liability arising out of your ongoing operations must be on ISO Form CG 20 10
07 04 or equivalent and the Additional Insured endorsement with respect to completed operations must be on
ISO form CG 20 37 07 04 or equivalent.

WAIVER OF SUBROGATION:
Each Contractor shall waive rights of subrogation which the Contractor or any insurer of the Contractor may
acquire against the OSFM or State of Oregon by virtue of the payment of any loss. Each Contractor will
obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies
regardless of whether or not the OSFM has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the
Contractor or the Contractor’s insurer(s).

CERTIFICATE(S) AND PROOF OF INSURANCE:
Upon request, each Contractor shall provide to OSFM Certificate(s) of Insurance for all required insurance
before delivering any Goods and performing any Services required under this Contract. The Certificate(s)
shall list the State of Oregon, its officers, employees and agents as a Certificate holder and as an endorsed
Additional Insured. The Certificate(s) shall also include all required endorsements or copies of the applicable
policy language effecting coverage required by this Contract. If excess/umbrella insurance is used to meet
the minimum insurance requirement, the Certificate of Insurance must include a list of all policies that fall
under the excess/umbrella insurance. As proof of insurance OSFM has the right to request copies of
insurance policies and endorsements relating to the insurance requirements in this Contract.

NOTICE OF CHANGE OR CANCELLATION:
Each Contractor or its insurer must provide at least 30 days’ written notice to OSFM before cancellation of,
material change to, potential exhaustion of aggregate limits of, or non-renewal of the required insurance
coverage(s).

INSURANCE REQUIREMENT REVIEW:
Recipient agrees to periodic review of insurance requirements by OSFM under this Contract and to provide
updated requirements as mutually agreed upon by Recipient and OS FM.

STATE ACCEPTANCE:
All insurance providers are subject to OSFM acceptance. If requested by OSFM, Recipient shall provide
complete copies of insurance policies, endorsements, self-insurance documents and related insurance
documents to OSFM’s representatives responsible for verification of the insurance coverages required under
this Exhibit B.

2023-CWRR-018 City of Phoenix.docx Page 1 1 of 11

29



City Council Meeting
Hybrid Meeting in Person and Via Zoom

Monday, August 21, 2023

1. CALLTO ORDER:
Mayor Baker called the City Council’s hybrid meeting to order on Monday, August 21, 2023,
at 6:30 p.m.

ROLL CALL:
PRESENT: Terry Baker, Karen Shrader, Angie Vermillion, Scott Clauson,

Krista Peterson

STAFF PRESENT: Eric Swanson, City Manager
Bonnie Pickett, City Recorder
Joe Slaughter, CEDEV Director
Derek Bowker, Chief of Police
Matias Mendez, PW Superintendent
Becca Pearson, Human Resources
Doug McGeary, City Attorney

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:
Mayor Baker spoke about the passing of Councilor Jim Snyder and how saddened we are
by the loss. The Mayor led the group in a moment of silence.

3. PRESENTATIO
a. Richard Randleman, HMK — Government and Public Safety Center Update.

Richard Randleman spoke about how Jim Snyder was involved in the community, noting he
hoped to leave a comparable legacy. He presented the progress of the Government of
Public Safety Center, sharing all good news on the progress.

Mayor Baker spoke about the tour of the new building and thanked Mr. Randleman for the
experience.

Mayor Baker moved item 7a, New Business, up in the agenda.

7. NEW BUSINESS:
a. Appointment of Rosa Van Gordon to the Parks and Recreation Committee

Rosa Van Gordon gave a brief background history and her interest in being involved in her
community. She noted she works well and is productive.

Motion: I Move to Ajpoint Rosa Van Gordon to the Parks and Recreation Committee.
MOVED BY VERMILLION, SECONDED BY PETERSON.

City Council Meeting Minutes— August 21, 2023

30



ROLL CALL VOTE AS FOLLOWS:
Ayes: Vermillion, Peterson, Shrader, Clauson
MOTION APPROVED WITH FOUR AYES

4. PUBLIC COMMENT:
Mayor Baker spoke about the fire that occurred off of Dano in Phoenix and the response to
the fire by the Police and Fire Department. He noted that Phoenix has no authority over
where the fire occurred.

Al Muelhoefer, Phoenix, spoke about his friend Jim Snyder, briefly explaining his
relationship with him. He spoke about how he respected Mr. Snyder and how Jim always
showed up.

Matt Sekreta, Phoenix, spoke about fire-defensible space and his measures to protect his
property. He spoke about point-of-entry access for firefighting efforts if a fire event occurs.

5. CONSENT AGENDA:
a. Reports for Information & Possible Action:

1. Approval of Application for Special Public Works Funding (SPWF) Through Business
Oregon and the Infrastructure Financing Authority

b. Minutes to Approve and File:
1. Minutes from City Council Meeting August 07, 2023

Motion: I Move to Approve the Consent Agenda. MOVED BY PETERSON, SECONDED BY
CLAUSON.

ROLL CALL VOTE AS FOLLOWS:
Ayes: Peterson, Clauson, Shrader, Vermillion
MOTION APPROVED WITH FOUR AYES

6. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS PULLED FOR DISCUSSION:
None

8. ORDINANCE: READING I ADOPTION:
a. Ordinance No. 1032 — An Ordinance Annexing 0.39 Acres, Including the Adjacent Right-
of-Way Within the City’s Urban Growth Boundary Pursuant to ORS 222.170, Removing the
Area from Jackson County Fire District No. 2 Pursuant to ORS 222.524 and Annexing the
Area to Jackson County Fire District No. 5 Pursuant to ORS 198.867.

Motion: I Move to Approve, on Second Reading by Title Only, Ordinance 1032 Annexinci
Property Identified as Tax Lots 400 & 401 on Assessor Map 38-1W-09a, Located at 157 N.
Phoenix Rd. and to Rezone the Property from Jackson County Urban Residential (UR) to
Commercial Highway (C-H), Consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and the Zoning on
Abutting Properties. MOVED BY PETERSON, SECONDED BY SHRADER. No further
discussion.

City Council Meeting Minutes — August 21, 2023

31



ROLL CALL VOTE AS FOLLOWS:
Ayes: Peterson, Shrader, Vermillion, Clauson
MOTION APPROVED WITH FOUR AYES

b. Ordinance No. 1034 — An Ordinance Accepting Dedication of Right-of-Way and a Public
Utility Easement in the City of Phoenix.

Motion: I Move Approval for Second Reading, by Title Only, Ordinance 1034, An Ordinance
of the City of Phoenix Accepting the Right-of-Way Dedication Shown on Exhibit A of the
Ordinance. MOVED BY PETERSON, SECONDED BY CLAUSON. No further discussion.

ROLL CALL VOTE AS FOLLOWS:
Ayes: Peterson, Clauson, Vermillion, Shrader
MOTION APPROVED WITH FOUR AYES

9. STAFF REPORT:
a. CEDEV Director Joe Slaughter noted that Ordinance 1033 had been delayed returning to
the Council for a second reading until September due to work being done to confirm the legal
descriptions of the annexed properties.

b. City Attorney Doug McGeary, no comment.

c. City Manager Eric Swanson spoke about the pre-launching of the New City Website at the
next City Council meeting on September 05, 2023. He spoke about the upcoming Phoenix
Rising Event on September 16, 2023, where we sought to engage with the community,
commemorating the third anniversary of the Almeda Fire.

d. Police Chief Derek Bowker noted in a small town, we are always looking for ways to come
up with new ideas and ways to save money. He advised that the City has donated a motor
from the Jackson County Sheriff’s office and all the radio equipment needed for the motor
from the City of Jacksonville. Chief Bowker said it will be used for community engagement,
such as parades and schoo’ events.

10. MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMENT I REPORTS:
Councilor Shrader noted how she is missing Jim Snyder, and these are sad times. She spoke
about how happy she was to hear the fire was put out quickly. Councilor Sharder noted the
bike will be an excellent addition to the City.

Councilor Vermillion spoke about how she is missing Jim Snyder, expressing that he was a
good man who kept everyone on their toes.

Councilor Peterson spoke about asking Jim Snyder to come back to the Council because we
needed him. She noted that she misses him; he was always the one to step in when things
needed to be done. Councilor Peterson stated that Jim will not be forgotten. She noted that
the public safety building is going to be amazing.

Councilor Clauson noted he wished he would have been able to work with him longer; he
found him to be a sharp man. He thanked the Mayor for informing the Council about what

City Council Meeting Minutes — August 21, 2023

32



was happening with Jim Snyder. Councilor Clauson noted that it is exciting to see the activity
going on at the Phoenix Phoodery site.

Mayor Baker spoke about the devastating Maui Fire and how he reached out to the Mayor’s
office, offering any assistance we could give to help them work through the bureaucratic
process of getting the assistance they need from the various government agencies. He spoke
about being a better person because he knew Jim Snyder. Mayor Baker stated that Jim was
in it for all the right reasons. He spoke about his many experiences with Jim being on the
Council. Mayor Baker spoke about his last private conversation with Jim Snyder and how he
had the chance to tell him how much he respected and truly looked up to him.

II. RECESS OPEN MEETING
5 Minute Recess

12. CONVENE TO EXECUTIVE SESSION
a. ORS 1 92.660 (2) (i) To review and evaluate the employment-related performance of the
Chief executive officer of any public body, a public officer, employee, or staff member who
does not request an open hearing.

13. CLOSE EXECUTIVE SESSION

14. RECONVENE OPEN MEETING
Mayor Baker noted that during the executive session, the Council evaluated the performance
of Eric Swanson as the City Manager. He noted the responses from staff and Council were
overwhelmingly positive.

Motion: I Move to Give Eric Swanson the Maximum Increase of 7%. MOVED BY
VERMILLION, SECONDED BY PETERSON. No further discussion.

ROLL CALL VOTE AS FOLLOWS:
Ayes: Vermillion, Peterson, Clauson, Shrader
MOTION APPROVED WITH FOUR AYES

15. ADJOURNMENT:
The meeting adjourned at 8:20 p.m.

Respectfully submitted by,

Bonnie Pickett
City Recorder

City Council Meeting Minutes — August 21, 2023

33



City Council Executive Session Meeting
Phoenix Plaza Civic Center

220 N. Main St.
Monday, August 21, 2023

CALL TO ORDER
Mayor Baker called the City Council executive session to order on Monday, August 21,
2023, at 7:39 p.m.

ROLL CALL
PRESENT: Terry Baker, Krista Peterson, Angie Vermillion, Karen

Shrader, and Scott Clauson

STAFF PRESENT: Eric Swanson, City Manager
Douglas McGeary, City Attorney
Becca Pearson, Human Resource/Payroll Coordinator
Bonnie Pickett, City Recorder

Mayor Baker convened into executive session at 7:39 p.m. under ORS 192.660 (2)(i) To
review and evaluate the employment-related performance of the chief executive officer
of any public body, a public officer, employee, or staff member who does not request an
open hearing.

Mayor Baker noted that during the executive session, the Council evaluated the
performance of Eric Swanson as the City Manager. He stated the responses were
overwhelmingly positive.

The meeting adjourned at 8:18 p.m.

Respectively submitted,

Bonnie Pickett
City Recorder

City Council Executive Session Meeting Minutes— August 21, 2023
34



Agenda Item #: 7a.

City of Phoenix
Heart of the Rogue Valley

Agenda item title: Appointment of the 2023 City Council Vice-President

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION
Section 10. Council Vice President. At its first meeting each year, the Council shall appoint
a vice president from its membership. The vice president presides in the absence of the
Mayor and council president and acts as Mayor when the mayor and Council president are
unable to perform their duties.

COUNCIL GOALS SUPPORTED
N/A

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

RECOMMENDATION
N/A

PROPOSED MOTION
I move to appoint

____

to serve as the 2023 Council Vice-President.”

ATTACHMENTS
N/A

Agenda
to Mayor and

Report
Council

Meeting Date: September 21, 2023

From Bonnie Pickett, City Recorder

Action: X Motion, Ordinance, X Information only, Other

SUMMARY
Per the City Charter, adopted November 3, 2015, (attached) Chapter III: Form of
Government:

City Council Agenda Report
35



Agenda Item #:7b.

City of Phoenix

SUMMARY

Agenda Report
to Mayor and Council

The mayor makes certain appointments to commiffees and commissions with the consent
of the council.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION
The mayor wishes to make council appointments as liaisons to the Rogue Valley Council
of Governments Board (RVCOG) and League of Oregon Cities Delegate (LOC).

COUNCIL GOALS SUPPORTED
N/A

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

RECOMMENDATION
N/A

PROPOSED MOTIONS
I move to appoint as council liaison to the RVCOG Board.

I move to appoint as council delegate to the LOC.

ATTACHMENTS
N/A

Heart of the Rogue Valley

Agenda item title: Appointment of Councilor as Committee and Commission Liaisons

Meeting Date: September 18, 2023

From: Bonnie Pickeff, City Recorder

Action: XMotion, Ordinance, Xlnformation only,

City Council Agenda Report
36



Agenda Item #: 7c.

Meeting Date: September 18, 2023

From: Bonnie Pickett, City Recorder

Action: X Motion, Information only,

SUMMARY
City Code Section 33:1 of Chapter VI Elections stipulates that a vacancy in the Council
shall be filled by appointment by a majority of the remaining Council members. The
appointee’s term of office runs from appointment until the expiration of the last person’s
term of office elected to that office.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION
In order to serve on the Council, an applicant must be a registered voter who has lived in
Phoenix for at least 12 months prior to his or her appointment and a qualified elector under
the State Constitution.

City Council consists of a mayor (elected to a two-year term) and six Councilors (elected to
four-year terms). The Council two seats to be filled by these appointments will end on
December 31, 2026. Councilors are volunteers who set policy and direction for the City,
appoint and supervise the city manager and city attorney, and adopt the annual budget.

Questions to consider for those applying to City Council that can be addressed in the
Motivation section of the application:
What do you think are the biggest issues facing the City of Phoenix?
What is your primary motivation for seeking the vacant City Council seat?
What community and city activities have you been involved in recently?

COUNCIL GOALS SUPPORTED
Goal #3 Work as a team. Respect teammates; listen and support.

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends Council appoints an individual to fill the open City Council seat.

PROPOSED MOTION
I move to appoint____________ to the open City Council seat ending December 31, 2026.
I move to appoint___________ to the open City Council seat ending December 31, 2026.

ATTACHMENTS
Applications for Open City Council seat.

Agenda Report
City of Phoenix to Mayor and Council
Heart of the Rogue Valley

Agenda item title: Interview/Appointment to Fill the Open City Council Seat

City Council Agenda Report
37



Application for City Council cPI,o

43REGc•N

Background

Years of Residence in Phoenix: 3.5

Place of Employment: Phoenix Flementary School

Occupation: Speech Language Pathologist Assistant

City State Zip: Phoenix, OR, 97535

Educational Background:
- Bachelors of Arts in Classics and Speech, Language and Hearing Sciences from the University of Colorado

- Boulder. Colorado
- Speech Language Pathology Assistant Certilication - Metropolitan State University - Denver. Colorado

Prior Civic Activities: I have been involved in school districts for the last 10 years.

Position of interest

Please circle the following that interest you:

Ma •or

t’ounciltr

RECEIVeS)

iG 2 1 2023

City of PHOENIX

Contact information

Name: Jillian Shainholtz

Street Addrcss

Mailing Address: same as above

City/State/Zip: Phoenix, OR, 97535

Home Phone:

Work Phone: nla

E:Mail Addressi

38



Special Skills or Qi.aIification

As a Speech Language Pathologist Assistant, I have cultivated great interpersonal skills over the last ten years
of my career. I have served both parents and students in this role and feel it would translate well into local
government. I pride myself on my ability to work well with others. I have strong leadership skills and I work
well under pressure.

Motivation

I am passionate about the Phoenix community and in upholding the meritocratic values of our nation. I believe
that Phoenix is a great place to live and work. I would be honored to represent my fellow citizens in important
decisions affecting our town.

Special Notice

Please be advised that members of the City Council are required to file an annual Statement of Economic
Interest with the State of Oregon. A sample reporting form is available at City Hall.

Agreement and Signature
By submitting this application. L affirm that the facts set forth in it are true and complete. I understand that
if I am accepted as a volunteer, any false statements, omissions or other misrepresentations made by me
on the application may result in my immediate dismissal.

Name (printed: t t tft (‘1 DiJi { TO Date:
cj 1/2o23

Signature: LL1U

Our Policy

Ills the policy of the City of Phoenix to provide equal opportunities without regard to race, color,
religion, nation origin, gender,sexual preference, age or disability. The City of Phoenix accepts
applications from potential hoardlcornmission members throughout the year and will hold
applications until vacancies exist on specific boards/commissions.

39



Apolication for City Council

Contact Information

0?

Name:

Background

Years of Residence in Phoenix: 9 $

Place of Employment:

Occupation: j I,-,

c___-,

City State Zip:

Educational Background: 7? c-: ,,- 1/ifl7thc.5 • %. y’

/1 /‘ ( p7

PriorCivic Activities: y6tf(7 4- -; i
V//ee F ,

//fy

Position of Interest

Please circle the following that interest you:

• Mayor

• (‘ityCouncilot

RECEIVED

AUG 282023
City of PHOENiX

o , r 77 .c3
Street Address:

Mailing Address: zs
City/State/Zip: 1’-1e- 7J f_

Home Phone:

Work Phone:

E:Mail Address

40



Special Skills or Qualifications

JLJr 2gueJc7 ‘/L ciiy /d

y1 1fr7(

)O/
/ií

6?1a//ie4/
‘ Ii.

/ait

Motivation

// ii’4

4Ad -td Z1

‘ t

7 ?L C’

Special Notice
Please be advised that members of the City Council are required to file an annual Statement of Economic

Interest with the State of Oregon. A sample reporting form is available at City Hall.

Agreement and Signature

Ry submitting this application, I affirm that the facts set forth in it arc true and complete. I understand

that if I am accepted as a volunteer, any false statements, omissions or other misrepresentations

made by mc on the application may result in my immediate dismissal.

Name (Printer): /1( L

Signature: J- ‘4-a-

/

Date: 3

Our Policy
It is the policy of the City of Phoenix to provide equal opportunities without regard to race, color,

religion, nation origin, gender, sexual preference, age or disability. The City of Phocmx accepts

applications from potential board/commission members throughout the year and will hold

applications until vacancies exist on specific boards/commissions.

41



Contt Iflformaj0

fl e d21h
Street Addzess.

Mailing Address:

City/State/Zip:

home Phone:

Work Phone:

E:MailMcfress: 1
Background

C,1 P1-Ic)

;
o • R- EG 0—N

‘p

Position of Interest

Please circle the following that interest you:

Mayor

cuncilo)

RECEIV

AUG 302023

f O(2_ S5S

Years of Residence in Phoenix: 9V/—
Place of Employment:

Occupation: ;ki—i J’(’
City State Zip: }
Educational Backgroundj ,

Prior Civic Activities

City of PHOENIX

42



Speciat Skills or Qualifications

kJtt ( L h
41uD UV#tU11’

Motivation

2 (IJ; I 2 J
k--ceji Y

C

Special Notice

Please be advised that members of the City Council are required to file an annual Statement of Economic

Interest with the State of Oregon. A sample reporting form is available at City Hall.

Agreement and Signature

By submitting this application, I affirm that the facts set forth in it are true and complete. I understand

that if I am accepted as a volunteer, any false statements, omissions or other misrepresentations

made by me on the application may result in my immediate dismissal.

Name (printed)

____________________________ _________________

Signature: c/_t

__________

Date: tX5 I

Our Policy

It is the policy of the Cty of Phoenix to provide equal opportunities without regard to race, color,

religion, nation origin, gender, sexual preference, age or disability. The City ofPhoenix accepts

applications from potential board/commission members throughout the year and will hold
applications until vacancies exist on specific boards/commissions.

43



Annilcation for City Council

Contact information

oLIo,

- R E G- (3- N

Name: ,4L /y?utfr/EPE,c
Street Address:

Mailing Address:

City State Zip:

I lotTie Phone:

\\ork Phone:

E:MaiI Address:

P#i,vix ,A 97

Background

Years of Residence in Phoenix:

Place of Einplo ment: /j’E 7.-I IE,t)

Occupation: II s 4 4

(t State Zip:

Educational Background:

5 uNiVEiSiT/ F

AIS JE8sr t.M/ivffieS/ry

Prior Civic Activities:

PEs-Nr 2E/14 /7y CO”/C/L

Wnz/? /7Vi t14Al A’1A/c1 ñE4/C/

Position of interest
Please circle the following that interest you:

• Mayor

•rcilor

RECEIVED

SEP 072023
C of PHOENIX

44



Special Skills or Qualifications

IAi i/Ot t/J W#V Ci V’ic CE PAW,D

ijfl2’riJ- ,9-iv! SiPP 7,AJ6— A 72EA4- EFF”/? 7
9/It’ &AS7?17Vt) iA/& (1l

it/S/1iv 7z’ ñtFI &F 7FCC)frlAlt1A//7

Motivation

iPfv EC-l/VaM1- vEtt,ime7
‘1 DOW,VT c)i ,OYt E-AJ/,

t’(Lt 4 4j 24’ //,9-A/7 /77
çi) T 47V#E4-Ti t2AJ C2F F2// 3/s-

5o T 9i,iFLLern’/I , WAVF E41X

Special otice

Please be advised that members of the City Council are required to file an annual Statement ot Economic
Interest with the State of Oregon. A sample reporting form is available at City hail.

Agreement and Signature
By submitting this application. I affirm that the facts set forth in it are true and complete. I understand
that if I am accepted as a volunteer, any false statements, omissions or other misrepresentations
made by mc on the application may result in my immediate dismissal.

a me (printe /%AFt7? Date:

Signature: (f

Our Policy
It is the policy of the City of Phoenix to provide equal opportunities without regard to race, color,
religion, nation origin, gender, sexual preference, age or disability. The City of Phoenix accepts
applications trom potential boardicommission members throughout the year and will hold
applications until vacancies exist on specific hoards commissions.

45



Agenda Item #: 8a.

zL Agenda Report
City of Phoenix to Mayor and Council
Heart of the Rogue Valley

Agenda item title: AN23-02 — An ordinance of the City of Phoenix to annex 353 acres of
property and right-of-way within the City’s urban growth boundary.

Meeting Date: September 18, 2023

From: Joe Slaughter, Community and Economic Development Director

Action: Motion, X Ordinance, only,

SUMMARY
Second reading of an ordinance annexing 353 acres within the City’s urban growth boundary
pursuant to ORS 222.170, removing the area from Jackson County Fire District No.2 pursuant to
ORS 222.524 and annexing the area to Jackson County Fire District No.5 pursuant to ORS
198.867(3).

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION
This is a City-initiated proposal to annex 353 acres within the City’s urban growth boundary
pursuant to ORS 222.170, remove the area from Jackson County Fire District No.2 pursuant to
ORS 222.524, and add the area to Jackson County Fire District No.5 boundaries pursuant to ORS
198.867(3). More than half of the owners of land in the territory, who also own more than half of the
land in the contiguous territory and of real property therein representing more than half of the
assessed value of all real property in the contiguous territory have consented in writing to the
annexation of their land in the territory and have filed a statement of their consent consistent with
ORS 222.170. The territory is located north of the exiting city boundary in two urban reserve areas
recently added to the City’s UGB: PH-3 and PH-S. These areas are located generally adjacent to
Hwy 99, lnterstate-5 and North Phoenix Road.

The City Council conducted a public hearing on August 7, 2023 on the proposed annexation,
affording all citizens an opportunity to be heard on the subject and review the proposal. Upon
closing the public hearing, the City Council deliberated and voted unanimously to approve
ordinance 1033 for first reading. The ordinance is now presented to Council for consideration on
second and final reading now that the legal description, meeting the requirements of the Oregon
Department of Revenue, has been prepared for the final version of the ordinance. The ordinance
has also been amended to make all portions of the proposed annexation effective January 1, 2024.
No other changes have been made since first reading of the ordinance.

COUNCIL GOALS SUPPORTED
Goal 8: Promote and encourage developers. Maintain responsive and effective planning and

building services.
Goal 9: Continue to advocate for PH-3 and PH-S inclusion.

FISCAL IMPACT
Properties annexed will pay property taxes to the City of Phoenix following annexation.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends Council approve ordinance 1033 for second/final reading.

PROPOSED MOTION

City Council Agenda Report
46



I move to approve for second reading, on reading by title only, Ordinance 1033, an ordinance annexing
353 acres within the City’s urban growth boundary pursuant to ORS 222.170, removing the area
from Jackson County Fire District No.2 pursuant to ORS 222.524 and annexing the area to
Jackson County Fire District No.5 pursuant to ORS 198.867(3).

ATTACHM ENTS
• Draft Ordinance 1033

City Council Agenda Report
47



ORDINANCE NO. 1033

AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING 353 ACRES WITHIN THE CITY’S URBAN
GROWTH BOUNDARY PURSUANT TO ORS 222.170, REMOVING

THE AREA FROM JACKSON COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT NO.2
PURSUANT TO ORS 222.524 AND ANNEXING THE AREA TO

JACKSON COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT NO.5 PURSUANT TO ORS
198.867(3)

WHEREAS, more than half of the owners of land in the territory, who also own more than
half of the land in the contiguous territory and of real property therein representing more
than half of the assessed value of all real property in the contiguous territory have
consented in writing to the annexation of their land in the territory and have filed a
statement of their consent consistent with ORS 222.170; and

WHEREAS the properties will be assigned City zoning which is consistent with the City’s
Comprehensive Plan Map and is generally equivalent to the County zoning it replaces,
as depicted in the Comprehensive Plan Designation map and Zoning Designation map
attached as Exhibit “A”; and

WHEREAS the following properties: 381 W03 TL 1600, 381 W04 TLs 500, 381 WO9A TLs
100, 103 & 105 and 381 W10 TLs 101 & 103, being zoned for Exclusive Farm Use in the
County, will be assigned the Holding Zone designation per PLDC Chapter 2.11; and

WHEREAS for those properties listed above, which are assigned the Holding Zone
designation, annexation will be effective January 1, 2024 and will occur only if the City
adopts an exclusive agriculture overlay that allows for the preservation of agricultural uses
through zoning prior to that date. For all other properties listed in this ordinance,
annexation will be effective January 1, 2024 and will occur regardless of whether the City
adopts an exclusive agriculture overlay; and

WHEREAS, as part of this annexation, the City will also annex portions of railroad,
highway, freeway and street rights-of-way as described in Exhibit “B” and depicted in
Exhibit “C”; and

WHEREAS, the subject properties are specifically identified on Jackson County Assessor
Maps as shown in the following table; and
Property Owner Area
381 WO4C1 100 YOUNGLAND DEVELOPMENT LLC 3.91
381W09B4000 MIRMIRLLC 0.31
381 W09B1400 DVM ENTERPRISES LLC 0.58
381 W05D3300 HAWK JEFFREY E/LORA A 2.00
381 WO9AB800 SNOW KIMBERLY LENZIPATRICIA K 0.16
381 WO9B1 500 BATTY DAVID W 0.85
381 W09B3900 THOMAS DAREN L TRUSTEE ET AL 0.57
381 W09B3600 SOUTH PACIFIC HIGHWAY LLC 2.40
381 W09B3700 SOUTH PACIFIC HIGHWAY LLC 2.63
381 W09B5301 SOUTH PACIFIC HIGHWAY LLC 1.72
381 W09BA2200 DURAN ESTEBAN GONZALEZ 0.18

48



381 WO9BA1 800 DURAN ESTEBAN GONZALEZ 0.21
381 WO9BA1 900 DURAN ESTEBAN GONZALEZ 0.26
381 WO9BA2000 DURAN ESTEBAN GONZALEZ 0.40
381 W04500 ARROWHEAD RANCH HOLDING COMPA 42.89
381 W031600 ARROWHEAD RANCH HOLDING COMPA 161.39
381 W09A1 00 ARROWHEAD RANCH HOLDING COMPA 3.07
381 W10100 ARROWHEAD RANCH HOLDING COMPA 42.55
381 WiOlOl ARROWHEAD RANCH HOLDING COMPA 6.97
381 W09A105 ARROWHEAD RANCH HOLDING COMPA 1.01
381 WO9A1 03 ARROWHEAD RANCH HOLDING COMPA 4.64
381 W10103 ARROWHEAD RANCH HOLDING COMPA 2.60
381W05D2500 KEENEDAVIDPETAL 0.33
381W05D3000 DICOPA INC. 1.76
381 WO9A1 02 JACKSON COUNTY 0.28
381W04C1000 MIRMIRLLC 1.85
381 W04C600 DVM ENTERPRISES LLC 0.86
381W04601 JACKSON COUNTY 4.07
381W09A809 JACKSON COUNTY 0.14
381W09A810 JACKSON COUNTY 3.11
381 WO9A1 890 JACKSON COUNTY 0.35
381 WO9AB200 JACKSON COUNTY 4.09
381 WO9AB1 700 JACKSON COUNTY 0.00
<Null> Cheryl Lane ROW 0.72
<Null> HWY 99 ROW 8.11
<Null> HVVY 99 ROW 1.16
<Null> I-S ROW 11.37
<Null> North Phoenix ROW 15.97
<Null> Oak Crest Way 1.55
<Null> NORTHRIDGE TERR ROW 2.80
<Null> Campbell Rd ROW 2.64
<Null> Railroad ROW 10.03

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Phoenix, after providing the required
public notification, held a public hearing on July 24, 2023, for the purpose of reviewing
the proposed requests and providing a recommendation to the City Council. The Planning
Commission public hearing was held in accordance with the appropriate provisions of the
City of Phoenix Land Development Code and State law, and, after due deliberation and
consideration of the proposed changes, the Planning Commission voted to recommend
that the City Council approve the annexation; and

WHEREAS, notice of the City Council public hearing was published and posted in the
manner and for the time prescribed by law and the public hearing was duly held by and
before the City Council as provided by law and by the terms of the published notice; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds and determines that the facts and conclusions in the
staff report issued for the Planning Commission’s July 24, 2023 hearing, and the Final
Order of the Planning Commission dated August 2, 2023, on file in the city offices, are
true and correct and are hereby adopted as findings of the City Council.

49



NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF PHOENIX ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The City Council declares and proclaims that the territory described in
Exhibit “B” and depicted in Exhibit “C” is annexed to the City of Phoenix,
removed from the boundaries of Jackson County Fire District No.2 and
added to the boundaries of Jackson County Fire District No.5.

Section 2. The zoning of the above-described properties shall be amended from
Jackson County zoning designations to generally equivalent City of Phoenix
designation consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan map as shown
in Exhibit “A”.

Section 3. The following properties — 381 W03 TL 1600, 381 W04 TLs 500, 381 WO9A
TLs 100, 103 & 105 and 381 WiD TLs 101 & 103 are assigned the Holding
Zone designation per PLDC Chapter 2.11. For these properties, annexation
will be effective January 1, 2024 and occur only if the City adopts an
exclusive agriculture overlay that allows for the preservation of agricultural
uses through zoning prior to that date. For all other properties listed in this
ordinance, annexation will be effective January 1, 2024 and will occur
regardless of whether the City adopts an exclusive agriculture overlay; and

Section 4. The City Recorder is directed to
A. File the following with the Secretary of State and Department of

Revenue:
a. A copy of this ordinance;
b. A copy of applicable land owner statements of consent.

B. Mail a copy of this Ordinance to Jackson County, to all service providers
and to any other parties entitled to receive this notice of its adoption.

Section 5. This application complies with the City’s Comprehensive Plan and ORS
Chapter 222.170 attached as Exhibit “D” and incorporated herein by
reference.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council and signed by me in open session in
authentication thereof this 1 8th day of September, 2023.

Terry Baker, Mayor

ATTEST: Approved as to form:

Bonnie Pickett, City Recorder Douglas McGeary, City Attorney

50



Exhibit “A”

See attached zoning and land use maps, 3 pages total.

51



I
IC

ou
nt

y
Z

on
in

g
D

es
ig

na
ti

on

0

1
In

ch
eq

ua
ls

0.
25

M
ile

s

T
he

cl
at

as
et

s
sh

ow
n

on
th

is
st

ay
ar

e
fo

r
pl

an
ni

ng
pu

rp
os

es
on

ly
.

T
he

C
ity

of
P

h
o
en

o

is
no

t
re

sp
on

si
bl

e
fo

r
er

ro
rs

or
om

is
si

on
s

E
ve

ry
ef

fo
rt

ha
s

b
ee

r
m

ad
e

to
in

su
re

Ih
e

ac
cu

ra
cy

of
th

is
m

ap
.

H
ow

ev
er

,
th

er
e

m
ay

be
in

ac
cu

ra
ci

es
du

e
to

hu
m

an
or

nr
ec

ha
rv

ra
i

er
ro

r
or

ch
an

ge
s

in
th

e
La

rr
d

u
se

D
is

tt
ic

t
m

ap
cr

ea
te

d
by

re
ce

nt
la

nd
us

e
ac

ti
on

s
or

le
gi

sl
at

iv
e

cn
ia

ng
es

To
ve

rif
y

th
e

zo
ni

ng
de

si
gn

at
io

n
of

a
pa

rc
el

or
to

re
po

rt
er

ro
rs

,
pl

ea
se

co
nt

ac
t

th
e

P
la

nn
in

g
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t
at

15
41

1
5
3
5
2
0
5
0
.

T
hi

s

pr
od

uc
t

is
pr

ov
id

ed
as

Is
,

w
it

ho
ut

w
ar

ra
nt

y
In

no
ev

en
t

n
th

e
C

rty
of

P
ho

en
ix

lia
bl

e
fo

r
d
am

ag
er

fr
om

th
e

us
e

of
th

is
pr

od
uc

t.
T

hi
s

pr
od

uc
t

is
su

bj
ec

t
to

li
ce

ns
e

an
d

co
py

ri
gh

t
li

m
it

a
ti

o
n
s

an
d

fu
rt

fr
et

di
st

ri
bu

ti
on

or
re

sa
le

is
pr

oh
ib

it
ed

.

C
re

at
ed

by
:

Je
ff

,
on

O
P

H
0

C
om

m
un

it
y

&
E

co
no

m
ic

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

4
A

n
n

ex
at

io
n

(F
ile

A
N

23
-0

2)
,

C
ou

nt
y

Z
on

in
g

D
es

ig
n
at

io
n
s

U
rb

an
G

ro
w

th
B

ou
nd

ar
y

52



z;ø

•1

o

0

-

o a

C

a

‘p >‘

9
a,

D
-a
C

C
cL)
-a

C

E
D

-a
ci)

C

0

>‘

C
0)
0

a,

0

Cu

w

(0

w

cuW

0
c’)0

4-.

2r’i

-? LI..wø

>0

c(u
Dx

. c

>
(0

C
0)
0)

0)
0)

U

(0
0)

0)
E
E
0
U

-o
C

0

0

C
(0

-D

E
>

U

53



O
‘O

4
C

om
m

un
it

y
&

E
co

no
m

ic
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

A
nn

ex
at

io
n

(F
ile

A
N

23
-0

2)
,

C
ity

L
an

d
U

se
D

is
tr

ic
ts

0
R

E
G

0
N

1L
__

JI
U

rb
an

G
ro

w
th

B
ou

nd
ar

y

I

4
,

B
ea

r
C

re
ek

G
re

en
w

ay
M

ed
iu

m
D

en
si

ty
R

es
id

en
ti

al

0.
13

H
ol

di
ng

Z
on

e

0 —

0.
25

1
In

ch
eq

ua
ls

0.
25

M
ile

sM
ile

s

G
en

er
al

In
du

st
ri

al

C
ity

L
im

it
C

om
m

er
ci

al
H

ig
hw

ay
H

ig
h

D
en

si
ty

R
es

id
en

ti
al

R
ig

ht
-o

f-
w

ay
L

ig
ht

In
du

st
ri

al

54



Exhibit “B”

See attached legal description and exhibit map, 5 pages total.

55



L.L FRIAR & ASSOCIATES P.C.
TELEPHONE

541—772-2782 CONSUL 77NG LAND SURVEYORS

P.O. BOX 1947
JAMES E. HIBBS, PLS PHOENIX, OR 97535 IJfriarandassociates@charter.net

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Beginning at the Northwest corner of BARNUM SUBDIVISION, according to the official
plat thereof, now of record, in Volume 14, Page 17 of plats of Jackson County, Oregon
said point being on the existing City of Phoenix Boundary; thence Southeasterly along
the Southwesterly line of said SUBDIVISION and along said City Boundary, 2189 feet,
more or less, to the most Southerly corner of Lot 1, Block 5 of said SUBDIVISION;
thence Northeasterly along the Southeasterly line of said Lot 1, the Southeasterly
line of said SUBDIVISION and along said City Boundary, 690 feet, more or less, to the
North line of Rose Street; thence Southeasterly along said North line and said City
Boundary, 60 feet, more or less, to the Southeasterly line of Cheryl Lane; thence
Southwesterly along said Southeasterly line, the Southeasterly line of that tract set
forth in Document No. 89-13262, Official Records of Jackson County, Oregon, the
Southeasterly line of said SUBDIVISION and along said City Boundary, 679 feet more or
less, to the most Southerly corner of said SUBDBVISION; thence Southeasterly along
the Northeasterly line of the Central Oregon & Pacific Railroad and along said City
Boundary, 1347 feet, more or less, to the most Southerly corner of Parcel 2 set forth
in Document No. 2021-033169, said Official Records; thence Southwesterly along said
City Boundary. 60 feet, more or less, to the Southwesterly line of said Railroad;
thence Northwesterly along said Southwesterly line and along said City Boundary, 933
feet, more or less, to the most Northerly corner of that tract set forth in Document
No. 2018—011376, said Official Records; thence leaving said City Boundary along the
Southwesterly line of said Railroad, Northwesterly, 5759 feet, more or less, to the
South line of Donation Land Claim No. 40, Township 38 South, Range 1 West, Willamette
Meridian, Jackson County, Oregon; thence Easterly along said South line, 309 feet,
more or less, to the Northeast corner of that tract set forth in Document No. 2018-
024592, said Official Records; thence Southeasterly, 73 feet, more or less, to the
Southeast corner thereof; thence Westerly, 206 feet, more or less, to the Southwest
corner thereof; thence Southeasterly along the Northwesterly line of said Railroad,
885 feet, more or less, to the most Westerly corner of that tract set forth in Document
No. 2019—035578, said Official Records; thence Northeasterly, 215 feet, more or less,
to the most Northerly corner thereof; thence Southeasterly, 329 feet, more or less,
to the most Easterly corner thereof; thence Northeasterly, 253 feet, more or less, to
the most Southerly corner of that tract set forth in Document No. 2015—008179, said
Official Records; thence Northwesterly, 97 feet, more or less, to the most Westerly
corner thereof; thence Northeasterly, 325 feet, more or less, to the Southwesterly
line of Oregon State Highway No. 99; thence Northwesterly along said Southwesterly
line, 14 feet, more or less, to the Southeasterly line of that tract set forth in
Document No. 2017—034019, said Official Records; thence Southwesterly along said
Southeasterly line, 1748 feet, to the most Southerly corner of said tract; thence
Northwesterly, 73 feet, more or less, to the most Westerly corner thereof; thence
Northeasterly, 181 feet, more or less, to the Southwesterly line of Oregon State
Highway No. 99; thence Northwesterly along said Southwesterly line, 73 feet, more or
less, to the most Easterly corner of that tract set forth in Document No. 2017—034019,
said Official Records; thence Southwesterly, 542 feet, more or less, to the most
Southerly corner thereof; thence Northwesterly, 336 feet, more or less, to the most
Westerly corner thereof; thence Northeasterly, 440 feet, more or less, to the
Southwesterly line of Oregon State Highway No. 99; thence Northwesterly along said
Southwesterly line, 308 feet, more or less, to the Southeasterly line of that tract
set forth in Document No. 02—67271, said Official Records; thence Southwesterly, along
said Southeasterly line, 205 feet, more or less, to the North line of said Claim No.
40; thence Westerly along said North line, 329 feet, more or less, to the most Westerly
corner of that tract set forth in Document No. 02—67271, said Official Records; thence

Phoenix Annexation — Page 1

56



L.J. FRIAR & ASSOCIA1ES P.C.
TELEPHONE

541—772—2782 CONSUL 71NG LAND SURVEYORS

P.O. BOX 1947
JAMES E. HIBBS, PLS PHOENIX, OR 97535 Ufriarandassociates@charter.net

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Northeasterly, 458 feet, more or less, to the Southwesterly line of Oregon State
Highway No. 99; thence Northwesterly along said Southwesterly line, 879 feet, more or
less, to a point at right angles to the most Westerly corner of that tract set forth
in Document No. 2018—036805, said Official Records; thence Northeasterly, 70 feet,
more or less, to said most Westerly corner; thence Northeasterly, 200 feet, more or
less, to an angle point in said tract boundary; thence Easterly, 66 feet, more or
less, to an angle point in said tract boundary; thence Southeasterly, 307 feet, more
or less, to the most Easterly corner thereof; thence Southwesterly, 250 feet, more or
less, to the Northeasterly line of Oregon State Highway No. 99; thence Southeasterly
along said Northeasterly line, 564 feet, more or less, to the most Westerly corner of
that tract set forth in Document No. 2012—009168, said Official Records; thence
Northeasterly, 250 feet, more or less, to the most Northerly corner thereof; thence
Southeasterly, 150 feet, more or less, to the most Easterly corner thereof;
Southwesterly, 250 feet, more or less, to the Northeasterly line of Oregon State
Highway No. 99; thence Southeasterly along said Northeasterly line, 1033 feet, more
or less, to the most Westerly corner of that tract set forth in Document No. 92-
25143, said Official Records; thence Northeasterly on the exterior boundary thereof,
245 feet, more or less, to the most Northerly corner thereof; thence Southeasterly,
113 feet, more or less, to an angle point in said tract boundary; thence Southerly,
201 feet, more or less, to the Southeast corner of said tract; thence Westerly along
the South line thereof, 115 feet, more or less, to the Northeasterly line of Oregon
State Highway No. 99; thence Southeasterly along said Northeasterly line, 837 feet,
more or less, to the Northerly line of Northridge Terrace; thence Northeasterly along
said Northerly line, 1354 feet, more or less, to the Southwest corner of Lot 5, Block
1, LAKESIDE ESTATES MOBILE HOME SUBDIVISDION, according to the official plat thereof,
IN Volume 15, Page 82 of plats of Jackson County, Oregon; thence Northwesterly, 114
feet, more or less, to the Northwest corner thereof; thence Easterly, 65 feet, more
or less, to the Northeast corner thereof; thence Southeasterly, 112 feet, more or
less, to the Northerly line of Northridge Terrace; thence Easterly along said
Northerly line, 514 feet, more or less, to the Southeast corner of Lot 13, Block 1,
said LAKESIDE ESTATES; thence Northerly, 63 feet, more or less, to the Northeast
corner thereof; thence Easterly along South line of that tract set forth in Document
No. 2022—022536, said Official Records, 279 feet, more or less, to the Southeast
corner of said tract; thence Northwesterly, 382 feet, more or less, to the Northeast
corner thereof; thence Westerly along the North line thereof, 40 feet, more or less,
to the Southeast corner of that tract set forth in Document No. 2007—036499, said
Official Records; thence Northwesterly along the Easterly line thereof, 993 feet,
more or less, to the South line of said Claim No. 40; thence East along said North
line, 807 feet, more or less, t6o the Southeast corner of said Claim No. 40; thence
North along the East line of said Claim 40, 828.4 feet, more or less, to the Northwest
corner of Parcel 1 per Document No. 2019—002621, said Official Records; thence
Southeasterly along the Northerly line thereof, 2078 feet, more or less, to the
Westerly line of North Phoenix Road; thence Northerly along said Westerly line, 1439
feet, more or less, to a point on the Westerly prolongation of the North line of
Campbell Road; thence East, along said prolongation, 30 feet, more or less, to the
Southwest corner of Donation Land Claim No. 84, Township 38 South, Range 1 West,
Willamette Meridian, Jackson County, Oregon; thence East, along the South line of
said Claim and the North line of Campbell Road, 2799 feet, more or less, to a point
at right angle to the Northeast corner of that tract set forth in Document No. 2023—
xxxxxx, said Official Records; thence South, 40 feet, more or less, to said Northeast
corner; thence Southerly along the Easterly line thereof, 3543 feet, more or less, to

Phoenix Annexation — Page 2

57



LL FRIAR & ASSOCIAThS P.C.
TELEPHONE

541— 772—2782 CONSUL 71NG LAND SURVEYORS

P.O. BOX 1947
JAMES E. HIBBS, PLS PHOENIX, OR 97535 Ijfriarandassociates@charter.net

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

the North line of Donation Land Claim No. 42, said Township and Range; thence West
along said North line, 1583 feet, more or less, to the interior ell corner of that
tract set forth in Document No. 2016—038738, said Official Records; thence North, 80
feet, more or less, to the North Northeast corner thereof; thence West, 420 feet,
more or less, to the Northwest corner thereof; thence South along the West line
thereof, 60 feet, more or less, to the Northeasterly line of that right of way set
forth in Document No. 2014—18439, said Official Records; thence Southeasterly along
said Northeasterly right of way, 664 feet, more or less, to the Northeast corner of
said right of way; thence South along the East line of said right of way, 28 feet,
more or less, to the existing City boundary; thence West along said City Boundary,
267 feet, more or less, to an angle point in said City Boundary; thence North, 20
feet, more or less, to an angle point in said City Boundary; thence West, 306 feet,
more or less, to an angle point in said City Boundary; thence North, 236 feet, more
or less, to the North line of said Claim No. 42; thence West along said North line
and along said City Boundary, 1880 feet, more or less, to the Northwest corner of
said Claim No. 42; thence South along the West line of said Claim No. 42 and along
said City Boundary, 859 feet, more or less, to the most Southerly corner of that tract
set forth in Document No. 90-10759, said Official Records; thence leaving said City
Boundary along the Westerly line of said tract, Northwesterly, 1084 feet, more or
less, to the North line of Donation Land Claim No. 44, said Township and Range; thence
Westerly along said North line, 319 feet, more or less, to the East line of OAK CREST
ESTATES, according to the official plat thereof, now of record, in Volume 30, Page 9
of plats of Jackson County, Oregon; thence Northerly along said Easterly line, 32
feet, more or less, to the Southwest corner of Lot 14, Block 2 of said LAKESIDE
ESTATES; thence Easterly, 112 feet, more or less, to the Southeast corner thereof;
thence Northwesterly, 151 feet, more or less, to the Northeast corner thereof; thence
Westerly, 66 feet, more or less, to the Northwest corner thereof; thence Westerly
along the Southerly line of Northridge Terrace, 1236 feet, more or less, to the
Northeast corner of Lot 4, Block 2, NORTHWOOD PARK SUBDIVISION, according to the
official plat thereof, now of record, in Volume 13, Page 26 of plats of Jackson
County, Oregon; thence Southerly, 120 feet, more or less, to the Southeast corner
thereof; thence Westerly along the Southerly line of said NORTHWOOD PARK, 651 feet,
more or less, to the Northeasterly line of Oregon State Highway No. 99; thence
Southeasterly along said Northeasterly line, 1009 feet, more or less, to the
Northwesterly line of Oak Crest Way; thence Northeasterly along the Northwesterly and
Northerly line thereof, 1466 feet, more or less, to the corner common to Lots 14 & 15
of said OAK CREST ESTATES; thence Southwesterly along the Southerly and Southeasterly
line of Oak Crest Way, 1417 feet, more or less, to the Northeasterly line of Oregon
State Highway No. 99; thence Southeasterly along said Northeasterly line, 569 feet,
more or less, to the most Southerly corner of that tract set forth in Document No.
2006—020546, said Official Records said point also being on the existing City
Boundary; thence leaving said City Boundary along the Northeasterly line of said
Highway No. 99, Southeasterly, 288, more or less, to the Southwesterly corner of that
tract set forth in Document No. 2021—051904, said Official Records; thence
Southeasterly along the Northeasterly line of said Highway No. 99, 586 feet, more or
less, to the centerline of Coleman Creek also being on the existing City Boundary;
thence Southwesterly along said centerline and along said City Boundary, 269 feet,
more or less, to the Southwesterly line of Oregon State Highway No. 99; thence leaving
said City Boundary along said Southwesterly line, Northeasterly, 634 feet, more or
less, to the most Northerly corner of that tract set forth in Document No. 2021—
016995, said Official Records said point also being on the existing City Boundary;

Phoenix Annexation — Page 3

58



L.J. FRIAR & ASSOCIATES P.C.
TELEPHONE

541— 772—2782 CONSUL T1NG LAND SUR VEYORS

P.O. BOX 1947
JAMES E. HIBBS, PLS PHOENIX, OF? 97535 ijfriarandassociatescharter.net

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

thence Northeasterly along said City Boundary, 35 feet, more or less, to the centerline
of said Highway No. 99; thence Southeasterly along said centerline and along said
City Boundary, 11 feet, more or less, to an angle point in said City Boundary; thence
leaving said centerline along said City Boundary, Northeasterly, 35 feet, more or
less, to the Southwesterly corner of that tract set forth in Document No. 2021—051904,
said Official Records; thence leaving said City Boundary along the Northeasterly line
of said Highway No. 99, Northwesterly 288 feet, more or less, to the most Southerly
corner of that tract set forth in Document No. 2006—020546, said Official Records
said point being on the existing City Boundary; thence Southeasterly along said City
Boundary, 49 feet, more or less, to the centerline of said Highway No. 99; thence
Northwesterly along said centerline and said City Boundary, 68 feet, more or less, to
an angle point in said City Boundary; thence leaving said centerline along said City
Boundary, Southwesterly, 35 feet, more or less, to the most Northerly corner of Rose
Street; thence leaving said City boundary, along the Southwesterly line of Oregon
State Highway No. 99, 166 feet to the most Easterly corner of that tract set forth in
Document No. 2014—005951, said Official Records; thence Southwesterly, 156 feet, more
or less, to the interior ell corner thereof; thence Southeasterly, 100 feet, more or
less, to the Southeast corner thereof; thence Westerly, 107 feet, more or less, to
the Southwest corner thereof; thence Northwesterly along the Westerly line thereof
and the Westerly line of that tract set forth in Document No. 2009—044772, said
Official Records, 195 feet, more or less, to an angle point in the Westerly line of
that tract set forth in Document No. 2009-044772, said Official Records; thence
Northwesterly, 239 feet, more or less, to the Northwest corner thereof; thence
Easterly, 149 feet, more or less, to the Southwesterly line of Oregon State Highway
No. 99; thence Northwesterly along said Southwesterly line, 2066 feet, more or less,
to the Southeasterly line of that tract set forth in Document No. 2023—001589, said
Official Records; thence Southwesterly along said Southeasterly line, 842 feet, more
or less, to the Northeasterly line of the Central Oregon & Pacific Railroad; thence
Southeasterly along said Northeasterly line, 1551 feet, more or less, to the point of
beginning. EXCEPTING THEREFROM Tract B set forth in Document No. 96-09724, said
Official Records.

Containing 348.91 acres, more or less.

AREA TO BE ANNEXED INTO
THE CITY OF PHOENIX

23—148
September 4, 2023

REGISTERED
PROFESSIONAL

LAND SUIVEYOR

ORECON
JULY ‘7, 1986
JAMES E. HIBBS

2234
RENEWAL DATE 6-3O25

Phoenix Annexation — Page 4

59



II::flfl

60



Exhibit “C”

See attached Assessor maps showing area of annexation, 10 pages total.

61



2

1

tf)

‘CL)

I.

/3

: i II

-

c .:o9c;

62



F
R

\.
‘.

I
.I

I
I

\
I
)

T
A

\,
-1

S
I(

I
IO

N
4

I
.S

.
1<

.)
\V

.
\\

‘.
.1

.I
A

(’
K

S
O

N
(‘

O
U

N
IY

.1
0(

1

&
IN

D
E

N
NI

E
D

E
()

R
[

FI
F

‘%
IF

F
F

II
I

F
1

I.
’

‘1
F

F
F

&
I\

I)
E

N

‘
S

”

\
\
S

•

L

c
c

F
4F

f

—

.Z
J

4

C
O

F
J
L

F•

S
E

O
1
’

it
’

JC
)3

F

4-
3

\

‘i
i

4
5

F

F
O

T
I

S
9

‘
.
5
’
.
.

5

63



+
-“----“--

:1

III

I,

III

Ill

-C

ED
XLsp

0-

I,
—ZIP

I
‘Pr

//{\\

.1

i/

‘pI PP I\’p II’

•1

7’ Pt i•64



/
ni ‘M ICd%I% XIS

Inc

-ç
4.,-

e

—z

rfl z
‘r

-‘4
7-

7

7
/

zzz*EZ1

/

A—

/

- : - - -

III In) *5.151% tIc
1,11 .551 ISIS XiS

,*Lp v.v :55 ::,ti5C
SLVO

65



I
I

6V
17

V
t

I
1

X
IN

-IO
Ik1

\6
\\

I

I
1
I
4
’

r
v.

I
I

I-I.I.I’I%

X
IN

1O
I

Id

V
M

I
I
4

.
I
S

.
.

\
...j

(
I
6

:
‘

:
/
/
/

.1•
\

N
/
.
:
/
/

/
/

(
‘
I

/
(1

I
L

.
/

p
1

—
—

(1
/

/
.1

-
.

C
•

‘
/

.D

-
i

t
4

/

I.
V

1
’

I

—

-

—

-i
i
i
_

I
II’

oo
.1

A
.l.M

1())
O

S
I)V

f
•V

•A
\

.\\II
s
.L

(•.Y
L

S
j
-
!
I
j

66



x
3%

th”

C

.7

rlsajeA ñI!I £0 IL CWZJPLIOO
viva via

67



I
P

.S
F

f
l
S

T
•‘

I)
II

IN
L

N
.\

V
.1

/4
N

L
11

4
S

E
C

.9
I.

3
8
S

.
R

.I
W

.
W

.M
.

JA
C

K
S

O
N

C
O

U
N

I’
Y

1
0
0

3
IW

9A
13

A
I’

P
R

O
X

II
I

Ii
IA

.I
N

M
I
i

I
H

)
I
I
I
2

-
-

4-
5•

_•
’••

-

-1

-‘
S.

;4
z.

\c
V

<
..i

\ç
..

\
ç
\
\
.
C

.
\
f
l
o
a
\

\.;
..:

.
\Z

/1
E

N
O

R
I

tI
k
II

)G
l

[h
R

R
A

(1
.

ç
-

4.
—

_
—

—
—

-
-
-
-
-
-
_
I
c

c
i

%

_
_
_

I
I
1
I
\

C’
.’

C
-

00
C

O

1
1

1
I

A
W

l.

1.
I

jr
.

-‘

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

“

-
-

.
“

I
I

..
‘<

.
.

J

C
:
C

A
P

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

l
I

M
A

C’
“

11
4

“.
4

_
_
_
_

_
_
_
_

“
(‘

I
0

_
_
_
_
_

68



0

c Z:’

7
-r

z

03

\L

•‘O

C4 !ZY_

4

69



GSDMA
04I2(2Dfl20253PMyatesa

IsrIWsq

ii\

2•

N

:3
—

“-

:,-:‘—

m-

00

it’E.-‘-.rn
sofr‘2‘

—‘t_C

3->510
flrri

-,u
1,

42

- tg‘

-5’.F’BElk5J)

‘P

—

)N/

SIIMAPSI1WIII

-:Psc

-X—<D——
70



*

SH

0.

Ii

0>0<

en

cx
—

en c

IL .SL1 II LVII JIS

V

tItI. DL CC.LLO
iv3 SLO

71



Exhibit “D”

ORS § 222.170
Annexation by Consent Before Public Hearing or Order for Election

(1) The legislative body of the city need not call or hold an election in any contiguous territory
proposed to be annexed if more than half of the owners of land in the territory, who also own
more than half of the land in the contiguous territory and of real property therein representing
more than half of the assessed value of all real property in the contiguous territory consent in
writing to the annexation of their land in the territory and file a statement of their consent with
the legislative body on or before the day:

(a) The public hearing is held under ORS 222.120 (Procedure for annexation without election),
if the city legislative body dispenses with submitting the question to the electors of the
city; or

(b) The city legislative body orders the annexation election in the city under ORS 222.111
(Authority and procedure for annexation), if the city legislative body submits the question to
the electors of the city.

(4) Real property that is publicly owned, is the right of way for a public utility, telecommunications
carrier as defined in ORS 133.721 or railroad or is exempt from ad valorem taxation shall not be
considered when determining the number of owners, the area of land or the assessed valuation
required to grant consent to annexation under this section unless the owner of such property files
a statement consenting to or opposing annexation with the legislative body of the city on or
before a day described in subsection (1) of this section.[Amended by 1955 c.51 §2; 1961 c.511
§2; 1971 c.673 §1; 1973 c.434 §1; 1983 c.350 §36; 1985 c.702 §11; 1987 c.447 §117; 1987
c.737 §4; 1999 c.1093 §12]

CITY OF PHOENIX LAND USE ELEMENT

Adopted by ORD 1008 Page 24

Policy 3.1
The City Council may approve annexations, without referral to the City’s entire electorate, when
findings and facts show that development of the property or properties proposed for annexation
would be consistent with the Plan and:
A) That development on the land proposed for annexation can be served with all urban services and

facilities without adverse impact on the availability, quality, quantity, or reliability of City services
provided to or likely to be needed by;
1. Existing development within the incorporated area, and
2. Undeveloped, partially vacant, or redevelopable incorporated land (considering approved

development plans or permissible densities as set out in the Plan), and
B) Population impacts of the proposed development will not cause the City’s population to grow at a

rate in excess of the Comprehensive Plan, Populating Element’s planned population. The
population impact of residential lands development shall be computed by:
1. Multiplying the gross area in square feet times 72 percent (to account for lands dedicated to

streets) then,

72



2. Dividing by the maximum lot size permissible within the zone that would be applied to the
property if annexed, and then,

3. Multiplying by the average occupancy associated with the dwelling type based upon the most
recent U.S. Census.

Such analysis shall be submitted by the applicant at the time of application.
An annexation conforms to the Population Element if the average rate of population growth likely to
result from annexation (considering development phasing of the proposed annexation) when added
to the development of previously annexed lands (considering their phasing and historical rate of
development) will not exceed 133 percent of the average annual population growth rate computed as
follows:

Planned Population — most recent PSU1 estimate of population Forecast Year — the year of the most
recent estimate.

Policy 3.2
The City Council may, at its discretion, refer to the City’s electorate any annexation that does not
fully comply with Policy 3.1. The procedures described within ORS 222.130 regarding annexation
elections shall be followed. A simple majority of votes cast shall determine the outcome.

Policy 3.3
The Council may annex territory to the City, and dispense with the requirements of Policy 3.1 and
3.2 where the Oregon Health Division has issued a finding that a danger to public health exists
because of conditions within the territory.

Policy 3.4
All properties annexed to the City shall eventually be improved to City standards; including but not
limited to street improvements, curbs, gutters, lighting, and other improvements included within the
City’s development standards or as may otherwise be specified by the City’s Engineer, Public Works
Director, or Planner and approved by the City Council. If required improvements are not proposed at
the time of annexation, then the annexation agreement shall specify that the improvements shall be
installed at the time of partitioning, subdivision, development or other time as approved by the
Council.

Policy 3.5
The City shall initiate proceeding to annex “islands” of unincorporated area within the City Limits
immediately following their creation or as soon thereafter as practical when deemed to be in the
overall best interest of the City. Such annexations are required to ensure orderly and equitable
provision of public improvement, utilities, and community services, and to further growth and
development of the community in accordance with this Plan.

Policy 3.6
The City Council may initiate “contract annexation” or an alternative procedure, other than standard
annexation, when it is determined that the community will derive significant economic advantage.

73



• • • • • • • • • • • • • •

• • • • • • • • • • • • • •

• • • • • • • • • • • • • •

• • • • • •

• • • • • •

WK
COMPANY

HMKCO.ORG

O•R•E•G’O•N

GOVERNMENTAND sr’.
SAFETY CENTER PROJECT

I I

I

August 2023

I

74



CITY OF PHOENIX

August2023
GOVERNMENT AND PUBLIC SAFETY CENTER PROJECT

O•R•E•G•O’N

PROJECT

GOVERNMENT AND PUBLIC SAFETY CENTER

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

• Construct a new combined city facility, replacing the Phoenix Fire Station (JCFD 5 Station 3)
• The new building incorporates the footprint of the City Hall, Fire Station, and Police Station
• The 2-story building efficiently collocates and stretches resources to enhance public safety

SCHEDULE & KEY MILESTONES START COMPLETION

Steel Columns/Beams Sector C 07/26/23 07/12/23 100%

Ext. Wall Framing Sector B 2nd Floor

Building Construction 03/02/23 03/14/24 40%

Substantial Completion 12/06/22 03/29/24 60%

CURRENT ACTIVITIES

Construction

Roof trusses for Sector B

were delivered and

erected in August, and

roof decking at Sector A

was completed as well.

This is continued progress

toward getting the

building “dried in” that

will allow electrical

rough-in to be

completed along with

enabling contractors to

work in adverse weather.

The next step for the

Sector A roof will be the

weather-resistant

I-14K Pagelof5
COMPANY

Ext. Wall Framing Sector B 2nd Floor 07/03/23 08/18/23 100%

COMMENT

07/03/23 08/18/23 40%

August

75



COMPANY

CITY OF PHOENIX
GOVERNMENT AND PUBLIC SAFETY CENTER PROJECT

August 2023

barrier that has started and shown in the picture
above.

The main staircase steel in Sector A was erected as
well. This staircase is the public access for City Hall
services on the second floor. The second-floor lobby
provides separate transaction windows for services
from City Hall reception, utility/billing, building, and
planning.

Exterior wall framing on Sector C (fire apparatus bay)
progressed well and the steel supports members for the
Fire living quarters on the second floor were
completed.

The framer completed the “7-wall” and it is being used
to provide an example of how windows and finishes will
be installed. It also serves as a visual reference for
installers to ensure they are installing items correctly.
weather penetration but is also easier to maintain.

The mockup ‘Z-WaII” is being used to evaluate installations of windows and weather barrier

Page 2 of 5

OF PHn1,

O•RE•G•ON

Steel for the main stairway was erected in August

•

76



OF
CITY OF PHOENIX

> GOVERNMENT AND PUBLiC SAFETY CENTER PROJECT
August 2023

O•R•E•G•O•N

Social Media

In July-August, the Government and Public Safety Center project achieved over 72,000 impressions,
21,000 social media accounts reached (Facebook, Linkedin, and Instagram) along with 1,794
engagements among community members.

Budget

In August, HMK staff conducted a routine evaluation of the project budget. While updating project
revenue, a discrepancy between the H.B. 5006 appropriation and the amount City Accounting
reported as revenue was discovered. Following inquires to Oregon Department of Administrative
Services, HMK determined the Oregon Senate, through Senate Bill 5534, enacted a $13,600,000 limit
on the funds that could be allocated to each agency. Unfortunately, it appears the City was not
notified of the limit enacted by S.B. 5534.

As a result, the city only received $13,600,000 instead of the $13,804,000 appropriated by the House
and reported as revenue in the budget. This will result in a $204,000 revenue reduction, consequently
increasing the budget shortfall from $3,208,183 to $3,412,183.

Because the project team has been diligent in capturing cost savings through value engineering and
the project is past some high-risk procurement items, there will likely be enough money in
contingency funds to cover this reduction in revenue assuming no significant unforeseen
contingency items emerge.

HMK also inquired about the H.B. 5202 funding and confirmed the $2,534,000 revenue reported in the
budget is correct.

HIGHLIGHTS, CHALLENGES, SOLUTIONS

Highlights / Challenges:

V Roof decking at Sector A was completed.

V Sector B second floor exterior walls were completed.

ACTIVITIES SCHEDULED FOR NEXT PERIOD

V The weather-resistant barrier (WRB) on the roof at Sector A will be completed.

V Sector B roof decking will be completed.

[.Iyj( Page3of5
COMPANY

77



OF CITY OF PHOENIX
GOVERNMENT AND PUBLIC SAFETY CENTER PROJ ECT

O•R•E•G•O•N

REVENUE / PROJECT BUDGET REPORTS

See attached reports

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

For questions, comments or additional information, please contact:

Richard Randleman, Senior Project Manager
richard.randleman@hmkco.org I https://hmkco.orq/cityofthoenix/ I 541 .821 .3674

Page 4 of 5

COMPANY

78



oo

O•R•EGO•N

CITY OF PHOENIX
CITY GOVERNMENT BUILDING PROJECT

REVENUE BUDGET
JULY 311 2023

Total Revenue $16,538,000 $ 4,630,017 $ 19,542,183 $ 323,322 $ 19,865,505

1. Program Revenue Budgets are an estimate. Accuracy should be verified by City personnel.

Program Revenue1
Bond and Other Proceeds

House Bill 5006
House Bill 5202
FEMA - Public Assistance

Other Revenue Sources (Federal, State, ETO)

Unallocated
Original Budget Received to Date Allocated to Date Revised Budget

Balance

$

$13,804,000 $ 4,630,017 $ 13,600,000 $ - $ 13,600,000
$ 2,534,000 $ - $ 2,534,000 $ - $ 2,534,000
$ 200,000 $ - $ 319,322 $ - $ 319,322
$ - $ - $ - $ - $

$ - $ 3,088,861 $ 323,322 $ 3,412,183

79



O P1fr

O•REG•0N

CITY OF PHOENIX
PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING

PROJECT BUDGET
JULY 31, 2023

Remaining
Revised BudgetOriginal Budget Paid to Date

Balance

Construction Sub Total

Soft Cost
Administrative Cost

Legal Fees
Builders Risk Insurance
Project Management

Reimbursable Expenses
Other Administrative Charges

Site Cost

I $ 15,000
2 $ 100,000

$ 608,575
$ 15,000
$

1,441
67,275

105,877
14,022

16,232,335

25,000
67,275

608,575
15,000

Site Survey
Geo-Tech Report

A & E Reimbursable Expenses
Commissioning
Printing & Plan Distribution
Hazardous Materials Consultant
Building Envelope Consultant
Constructability Review
Plan Review & Building Permits
Special Inspection and Testing
Miscellaneous Fees
Relocation Cost

Miscellaneous
Legal Advertisements
Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment (FF&E)
Technology
Technology (Design)
Acoustics
Criminal Background Checks
System Development Charges
Value Engineering
Utility Connection Fee
Unallocated Owner Contingency
Inflation

$ 1,214,005
$ 15,000

2 $ 60,700
$ 2,500

2 $ 36,420
$ 60,700

2 $ 48,560
$ 121,400
$ 60,700
$ 63,560
$
$ 24,280

$ 2,500
1$ -

$
$ 24,280
$ 24,280
$ 2,500
$ 121,400
$
$ 121,400

1,2 $ 843,633

$ 433 $ 2,067
$ - $ 750,000
$ - $
$ - $ 24,280
$ - $
$ - $
$ - $ 121,400
$ - $
$ 11,657 $ 109,743
$ - $ 136,241
$ - $

1,100,000
15,000
50,887

2,500
22,300
63,800

121,400
60,700
63,560

100,000

2,500
750,000

24,280

Sub Total Soft Cost $ 3,659,233 $ 1,692,021 $ 1,821,827 $ 3,513,848

Total Project Cost $ 18,021,679 $ 4,676,395 $ 15,072,525 $ 19,746,183

1. Reallocated funds within budget (09.30.22)

Program Expense
Hard Cost

Maximum Allowable Construction Cost (MACC) $ 13,421,067 $ 2,981,638 $ 12,267,205 $ 15,248,843
1.5% Solar Requirement (1.5% of Total Project Budget; $ 270,325 $ 2,737 $ 228,733 $ 228,733
Construction Contingency $ 671,053 $ - $ 754,759 $ 754,759

$ 14,362,446 $ 2,984,375 $ 13,250,697 $

$ 23,559 $
$ - $
$ 502,698 $
$ 978 $
$ - $

Planning Cost
Design Fees

$
$
$
$
$

2 $ 24,280 $ 11,030 $ - $ 11,030
$ 48,560 $ 30,999 $ 1 $ 31,000

Kitchen

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

946,714
412

7,893

16,153
26,072

10,877
19,348
62,946
20,251

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

153,286
14,588
42,995

2,500
6,147

37,728

110,523
41,352

614
79,749

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

121,400

121,400
136,241

2. Reallocated funds within budget (1 2.31 .22)

80



COMPANY
. . . . .

• •

•

46 N. Front Street, Suite 201
Medford, OR 97501

P. 541.821.3674
richard.randleman@hmkco.org

HMKCO.ORG

• • • • • • • • • • • • • •

• • • • • • • • • • • • • •

81




